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25 November 2020
Digital and data delivers strong customer and profit growth for Tower

Kiwi insurer Tower Limited (NZX/ASX:TWR) today announced underlying profit excluding large events
increased 23% on the prior year to $34.7m, underlying profit including large events increased 3% on the
prior year to $28.4 million, passing the top end of its guidance.

Tower’s reported profit of $12.3 million, includes the $9.5 million impact from the recently announced EQC
settlement of $42.1 million. Tower will receive $42.1m after disbursement to reinsurers and cost which
amounts to 76% of the gross carrying value listed in Tower’s accounts.

Tower’s investment in digital and data has helped the company grow GWP 8% to $385 million and increase
customer numbers by 11% to 300,000.

Tower CEO Blair Turnbull, who joined the company in August 2020, says the company’s digital and data
strategy is a game changer and is laying the groundwork to fundamentally transform how we deliver
insurance in New Zealand and the Pacific.

“New Zealand and the South Pacific are beautiful locations, but there’s no doubt we face a few natural
perils, like earthquakes and cyclones, which is why insurance is so important” says Turnbull.

“As an insurer it’s our job to help get customers back on their feet and the recent flooding in Napier and fires
in Lake Ohau demonstrate the importance of the role we play in communities. But we want to do more than
just help customers when they need to claim, we want to support them to avoid accidents.

“We have a significant amount of data and we’re investing in innovations that will help customers
understand risk, create safer driving habits and get customers to see insurance as a valued part of their life.”

Turnbull says that as well as deepening customer relationships, digitisation will continue simplifying
insurance and deliver efficiencies.

“Digitisation allows Tower to reach customers in new and exciting ways. As a result of our simplified online
processes, two-thirds of new business is now coming through online channels and close to half of all claims
are being logged online. Less than a year ago we launched MyTower, a fully online sales and service portal,
and since then we’ve had over 50,000 people register. It’s this type of innovation that will set us apart,” says
Turnbull.

“To help accelerate our digital and data progress, we've entered new partnerships with the likes of the
University of Auckland’s Science Faculty, Ushur in the US, Amodo in Croatia, as well as existing partners such
as Corelogic.

“Digital and data also allows us to reduce our operating ratios, by giving us the tools and insights we need to
manage our claims expenses closely. Tower improved its loss ratio from 48% to 46% in FY20 which
demonstrates our ability to grow the business while managing claims effectively and without a significant
increase in our cost base.

“Following the recent settlement with the EQC, our strong capital base has been further
strengthened and we are well placed to accelerate. Our competitors should be left in no doubt

that we are here to compete and show Kiwis they can expect more from their insurer.”

ENDS
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Insurance

Results for announcement to the market

Name of issuer Tower Limited

Reporting Period 12 months to 30 September 2020

Previous Reporting Period 12 months to 30 September 2019

Currency NzD

Revenue from continuing $410,818 10%
operations

Total Revenue $410,818 10%
Net profit/(loss) from $11,892 -28%
continuing operations

Total net profit/(loss) $11,892 -28%

Interim/Final Dividend
Amount per Quoted Equity No dividend has been proposed

Security

Imputed amount per Quoted | N/A
Equity Security

Record Date N/A
Dividend Payment Date N/A

Current period Prior comparable period

Net tangible assets per $0.56 $0.56
Quoted Equity Security

A brief explanation of any of | Revenues increased 10% year-on-year due to the purchase of

the figures above necessary | youi's New Zealand portfolio and organic growth in the New
to enable the figures to be Zealand business.

understood ) ) )
Net profit reduced by 28% year-on-year due to impairment of EQC

receivable based on the settlement agreed on the 24" of
November.

Authority for this announcement

Name of person authorised Rachael Watene, Company Secretary
to make this announcement

Contact person for this

Nicholas Meseldzija, Head of Corporate Communications

announcement
Contact phone number +64 21 531 869
Contact email address nicholas.meseldzija@tower.co.nz

Date of release through MAP | 25 November 2020

Audited financial statements accompany this announcement.
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Tower Limited

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 20 September 2020

S thousands Note 30-5ep-20 30-Sep-19
Gross written premium 377,159 356,767
Unearned premium movement {4,607) {11,772}
Gross earned premium 2.1 372,552 344,995
Outward reinsurance premium (58,030} (55,054)
Movement in deferred reinsurance premium 810 79
Outward reinsurance premium expense (57,220} (54,975}
Net earned premium 315,332 290,020
Claims expense (206,767) {190,639)
{ess; Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 2.1 25,'711 14,985
Net claims expense 2.2 (181,056) (175,714
Gross commission expense {20,947} (20,252)
Commission revenue 21 6,457 3,771
Net commission expense {14,490} (36,481)
Underwriting expense 2.3 (87,949) (77,185)
Underwriting profit 31,837 20,640
investment income 3.1 5,810 7,519
investment expense (466} {418)
Corporate and other income 288 2,074
Corporate and other expense (2,967} (3,508)
Impairment of EQC receivable 2.7 (13,126)
Financing and other costs {1,125) (312)
Profit before taxation 20,251 25,595
Tax expense 7.1 (7,910) (9,190)
Profit after taxation --12,341 16,805
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences s 1374) 793
{tems that will not be reclussified to profit or loss
Gain on asset revaluation 5.3 . 41 305
Deferred income tax relating to asset revaluation 5.3 . _. 8 (32)
Other comprehensive {loss)/profit net of tax (1,325) 1,066
Total comprehensive profit for the year : .ll,biﬁ 17,871
E!arnings per share: |
Bpsic and diluted earnings per share (cents) | '2.85 4.73
Pi’oﬁt after taxation attributed to: ! :
Shareholders 11,892 16,565
Non-controlling interests ‘449 240
12,341 16,805
Total comprehensive profit attributedte: U S
Shareholders 1_0,653 _ 17,538
Non-controlling interests . 363 333
11,016 17,871

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




Tower Limited

Consolidated balance sheet

As at 30 September 2020

S thousands Note 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8.1 80,108 62,018
Investments 3.2 237,904 234,172
Receivables 2.7 250,746 247,501
Current tax asset 7.2a 12,892 13,589
Deferred tax asset 7.3a 26,832 30,308
Deferred insurance costs 2.6 34,667 32,530
Right-of-use assets 6.3al(i) 7,211 -
Property, plant and equipment 6.1 10,041 9,104
Intangible assets 6.2 84,954 74,211
Total assets 745,355 703,433
Liabilities

Payables 2.8 66,600 75,907
Unearned premiums 2.5 203,452 187,855
Outstanding claims 2.4 107,747 124,060
Lease liabilities 6.3a(ii) 8,695 -
Provisions 2.9 9,531 6,802
Current tax liabilities 7.2b 821 229
Deferred tax liabilities 7.3b 1,346 991
Borrowings 51 - 14,931
Total liabilities 398,192 410,775
Net assets 347,163 292,658
Equity

Contributed equity 5.2 492,424 209,990
(Accumulated losses) / Retained earnings (42,990) 71,059
Reserves 5.3 (104,431) 9,808
Total equity attributed to shareholders 345,003 250,857
Non-controlling interests 2,160 1,801
Total equity 347,163 292,658

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board on 25 November 2020.

WM D ot

Michael P Siassny Graham R Stuart
Chairman Director



Tower Limnited

Year Ended 30 September 2020

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributed to Shareholders

Contributed

Non-controtling

S thousands equity Retained earsings  Reserves terast Total Equity
Year Ended 30 September 2020

Balance as at 30 September 2019 209,990  (36,101) 9,808 1,801 185,498
Impact of amélga mation* - 107,160 - - 107,160
Balance post amalgémation 209,990 71,059 9,808 1,801 292,658
Ad;ustment on initial apphcatlon of NZ IFRS 16 - {1,333) - (4 (1,337)
Restated kalance at begm ning of the year 209,990 69,726 9,808 1,797 291,321
Comprehensme mcame ' ' _
Profit for {he year - '11,892 - 449 12,341
Currency translation, dlfferences - s -(2,288) (86) {1,374)
Gain on asset revaluation - C- 41 s oM
Deferred income tax relatlng to asset i ) 8 . 8
reva%uatmn - _ _ C

Total comprehensive incame - 11,892 {1,239) 363 11,016
Transac.::‘.a'ns' wit.h.s.hdrehplders . . . ’ : - _ '

Net proceeds of ca;ﬁifal raise 45,000 {119) - - 44,881
Dividends written off - {99) - - {99)
Other R . . 44 . . 44
Cancél!ation of shares on amalgamation* (254,990} 254,990 L. - -
Recogbition of sharés on amalgamation® 492,424 {379,424) (113,0[50) - -
Total transactions with shareholders 282,434 (124,608) - {113,000) - 44,826
At the end of the year © : 492,424 . (42,990) (104,431) . 2,160 347,163
Year Ended 30 September 2019

Balance as at 30 September 2018 209,990 (53,187} 8,835 1,468 167,106
impact of amalgamation - 107,673 - 107,673
Restated balance at beginning of the year_ 209,990 54,486 8,835 1,468 274,779
Comprehensive income

Profit for the year - 16,565 240 16,805
Currency translation differences - - 700 33 793
Gain on asset revaluation - 305 - %05
Deferred income tax relating to asset !
revaluation i i (32) i (32)
Total comprehensive income . - 16,565 973 333 17,871
Transactions with shareholders

Other - 8 8
Total transactions with shareholders - g 8
Atthe end of the year 209,990 71,059 9,808 1,801 292,658

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* Refer to note 8.2 for further information.




Tower Lirnited

Consolicated statement of cash flows

For the Year Ended 30 September 2620

S thousands Note  30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19
Cash flows from operating activities

Premiums received 366,738 343,411
Interest received 7,328 8,141
Fee and other income received 7,345 5,818
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 18,035 25,528
Motor premium refund payments (5,849) -
Reinsurance paid (54,867) {55,968)
Claims paid (223,751) (208,770)
Employee and supplier payments (94,783) {91,095)
Incame tax paid (3,317) (2,453)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 18,879 24,612
Cash flows from investing activities '

Proceeds from sale of interest bearing investments 112,484 73,479
Payments for purchase of interest bearing investments (117,734) {115,102)
Payments for purchase of intangible assets {7,361) (35,741}
Payments for purchase of customer relationships* {9,473) -
Payments for purchase of property, plant & equipment (3,122} (1,886}
Net cash outflow from investing activities (25,206} (79,250}
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from share capital issuance 47,300 -
Payments for cost of share capital issuance (2,419) -
Repayment of borrowings (15,000} -
Proceeds from borrowings ORI 15,000
Facility fees and interest paid ._:_(1__,_115_}_ {352)
Payment relating to principal element of lease liabilities {3,070) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 25,696 14,648
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents a 19,369 (35,990)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes : (1,27?)_ 7
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 62,018 102,001
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 80,108 62,018

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accoinpanying notes.

* This represents the net cashffow associated with the purchase of Youi NZ Pty Ltd.'s insurance portfolio. It
constitutes the gross purchase price {(and associated costs) as disclosed in note 6.2 less the net insurance

fiabilities Tower absorbed as part of this transaction.

pwe



Tower Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Overview

This section provides information that is helpful 10 an overall understanding of the financial statements and the
areas of critical accounting judgements and estimates included in the financial statements. It also includes a
summary of Tower's aperating segments.

1.1 About this Report

a. Entities reporting

The financial statements presented are those of Tower Limited {the Company} and its subsidiaries. The Company
and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report as Tower or the Group. The address of the
Company's registered office is 45 Queen Street, Auckland, New Zealand.

Buring the periods presented, the principal activity of the Group was the provision of general insurance. The
Group predominantly operates in New Zealand with some of its operations based in the Pacific Islands region.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Boarg of Directors on 25 November 2020. The entity’s
owners or others do not have the power to amend the financial statements after issue.

h. Statutory base

Tawer Limited is a company incorporated in New Zealand under the Companies Act 1993 and listed on the NZX
Main Board and the Australian Securities Exchange. The Company is a reporting entity under Part 7 of the
Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013.

c. Basis of preparation

The Company is a for profit entity and the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New
Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP). They comply with international Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reperting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other
appiicabie financial reporting standards, as appropriate for Tier 1 for-profit entities.

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Part 7 of the
Financial Markets Canduct Act 2013 and the NZX Main Board Listing Rules,

The Group financial statements are presented in New Zealand doliars and rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars. They have been prepared on a fair value measurement basis with any exceptions noted in the accounting
policies befow, or in the notes to the financial statements.

d. Change in comparatives
j
Refer to note 8.9 for details of change in comparatives. There is no chgnge to net assets or the 2019 consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. :




Tower Limited

1.2 Consolidation

a. Principles of consolidation

{i

il

The Group financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of the Company at balance
date and the results of all subsidiaries for the year.

Subsidiaries are thase entities over which the consolidated entity has control, being power over the investee;
exposure, or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

The results of any subsidiaries acquired during the year are consalidated from the date on which control was
transferred to the consolidated entity and the results of any subsidiaries disposed of during the year are consolidated
up to the date control ceased,

The acquisition of controlled entities from external parties is accounted for using the acquisition method of
accounting. Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in ¢carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.

Intercompany transactions and balances between Group entities are eliminated on consolidation.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currencies

The financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary ecanamic environment in
which the entity operates. The Group financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and rounded to the
nearest thousand dollars unless stated otherwise,

(i) Transactions and balances

in preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
transtated into New Zealand dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the transaction dates. Monetary items
receivable or payable in a foreign currency are translated at reporting date at the closing exchange rate.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as financial assets held at fair value through profit or joss are
reported as part of their fair value gain or loss.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or retranslation of monetary items at year end exchange rates impact
profit after tax in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income unless the items form part of a net
investment in a foreign operation, In this case, exchange differences are taken to the Foreign Currency Translation
Reserve and recognised {as part of comprehensive profit) in the statement of comprehensive income and the
statement E)F changes in equity.

(i) cansaliéatlan

For the purpose of preparing consolidated financial statements the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries with a
functional currency different to the Company are translated at the closing rate at the balance date. Income and
expense items for each subsidiary are translated at a weighted average of exchange rates over the period, as a
surrogate for the spot rates at transaction dates. Foreign currency translation differences are taken to the Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of
changes in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a fareign operation are treated as assets and
lizbifities of the foreign operation and are translated at the closing rate with movements recorded through the
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve in the statement of changes in equity. oo




Tower Limited

1.2 Consolidation {continued)

On disposal of & foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

¢. Subsidiaries

The table below lists Tower Limited's principal subsidiary companies and controfled entities. All entities have a
balance date of 30 September.

Tower simplified its corporate structure on 30 September 2020 to make Tower Insurance Limited the listed
parent. Tower Limited, Tower New Zealand Limited and Tower Financial Services Group Limited undertook a
short-form amalgamation into Tower Insurance Limited. In addition, Tower Insurance Limited was renamed Tower
Limited. The table below and diagram on the following page iflustrates this change and further information is
provided in note 8.2.

MName of company Incorporation Holdings

2020 2019
Parent Company
Mew Zealand general insurance operations
Tower Limited (formerly named Tower Insurance Limited) NZ Parent -
Mew Zezland holding campany
Tower Limited NZ - Parent
Subsidiaries
New Zealand general insurance operations
Tower nsurance Limited NZ - 100%
Overseas general insurance operations
Tower Insurance {Cook [slands) Limited Cook Islands 100% 100%
Tower Ensurance (Fiji) Limited Fiji '1_0b% 100%
Tower Insurance (PNG} Limited PNG e ""-'316'0% 100%
National Pacific Insurance Limited ("NPI"} Samoa < 71% 71%
Tower nsurance (Vanuatu) Limited Vanuatu 1060% 100%
Management service operations y
Tower Services Limited NZ " 100% -
Tower New Zealand Limited NZ - 100%
Tower Financial Services Grciup Limited NZ E . - l 100%




Tower Limited

1.2 Consolidation (continued)

Pre-amalgamation structure

Tower Limited

Tower Financial
Services Group

Tower New
Zealand Limited

Amalgamated structure

Tower Limited

(formerly Tower
Insurance Limited}

Overseas general
insurance

operations

I

Tower Services
Limited

Limited

(subsidiaries)

Tower Insurance
Limited

Overseas general
insurance
operations

(subsidiaries)




Tower Limited

1.3 Critical accounting judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements management is required to make estimates and related assumptions
about the future. The estimates and related assumptions are based on experience and other factors that are
considered to be reasonable, and are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to the estimates are recognised in
the period in which they are revised, or future periods if relevant. The key areas in which estimates and related
assumptions are applied are as follows:

- Net outstanding claims  note 2.4
- Liability adequacy test note 2.5
- Intangible assets note 6.2

- Deferred taxation note 7.3

COVID-18 Pandemic

An assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on Tower's balance sheet is sef out below based on information
available at the time of preparing these financial statements.

Balance sheet Impact

Investments Investments are carried at fair value and reflect a iower interest rate environment.

Immaterial impact. Provision for impairment of premium receivables and “other

Receivables . . .
recoveries” has been updated to include an allowance for increased non-payment.
. fmmaterial impact. One minor lease was deemed onercus due to a branch office
Right of Use Assets A . .
closure in Fiji and was impaired.
Intangible assets No impact. Tower has assessed that its intangible assets have not been impaired.

Immaterial impact, Provision for unearned premium canceliation has been updated

Unearned premiums , .
to include an allowance for ingreased non-payment.

. ] Immaterial impact. A small adjustment has been made for delay in the reporting and
Net outstanding claims . . . . .
progressing of claims in the valuation of outstanding claims.
Provisions have increased. First, there is a year-on-year increase due to ouistanding
Provisions motor premium refunds. Second, Tower's employee leave balances have increased
due to a reduction in leave taken during the year {which Tower is actively managing).

RBNZ has been engaged with Tower on its response to COVID-19 and the sufficiency of its capital position. This is !
nart of sector-wide reguiatory engagement in response to COVID-19 focused on financial stability, dividend policy :
and operationzl changes/decisions that have customer impacts.

In November 2020, the RBNZ relaxed their guidance for dividend payments for New Zealand hased insurers. The
RBNZ expects that insurers will only make dividend payments if it is prudent for that insurer to do so, having
regard to their own stress testing and the elevated risks in the current environment,

10 pw€



Tower Limited

1.4 Segmental reporting

a. Operating segments

Tower operates in two geographical segments, New Zealand and the Pacific region. New Zealand comprises the
general insurance business underwritten in New Zealand. Pacific Islands comprises the generaf insurance business
underwritten in the Pacific by Tower subsidiaries and branch operations, New Zealand Corporate includes head
office expenses, financing costs, intercompany eliminations and recharges.

The Groug does not derive revenue from any individual or entity that represents 10% or more of the Group's total
revenue.

b. Financial performance

New Zealand General Pacific Islands General New Zealand

$ thousands Insurance Insurance Corporate Totat
Year Ended 30 September 2020

Gross written premium . ' . 317,478 55,681 - 377,158
Gross earned premitﬁm - éxternal ' T 311,671 60,881 ' - 372,552
Outw.ards reinsurance éxpéﬁse K (38,774) . (18,.446) - {57,220)
Net earned premium ' 272,897 42,435 - © 315,332
Net claims expense . (16;_1,6.9.5) {19,361} - _ . {181,058)
Net cofnrhission expense o (12_,0'2.7) - (2;4_63;) - {14,490)
Underwriting expense . (74,752) (13,297} - {87,049)
Underwriting profit - 24,423 _ 7,914 - 31,837
Net investment income ' 4,265 769 - 310 -_5,344
Impairment of EQC receivabie _ '(13,126) - Lo {13,126)
Other ex;ﬁenses e : : _ . (286$ E . 62 {3,580) .{3,804)

R S 9’907 4,789 .‘.2.’355.).; T
Year Ended 30 September 2019

Gross written premium 256,598 60,169 - 356,767

Gross earned premium - external 285,677 59,318 N - 344,995

Outwards reinsurance expense {37,816) (17,159) - (54,975)

Netiearned premiurm 247,861 42,159 5 - 290,020

Neticlaims expense {161,071) (14,643) | - {175,714}

Net commission expense {13,585) {2,896) - (16,481}

Underwriting expense (63,600) (13,585) - (77,185)

Underwriting profit 9,605 11,035 - 20,640

Net investment income 6,574 44 483 7,101

Other expenses (873) 1,050 (1,923) (1,746}

Profit hefore tax 15,306 12,129 {1,440) 25,995

Profit after tax 9,749 7,564 (508) 16,805 ”

14



Tower limited

1.4 Segmental reporting {continued)

¢. Financial position

New Zealand General Pacific Islands General New Zealand
S thousands | Total
nsurance insurance Corporate
Total assets 30 September 2020 534,487 105,376 105,492 745,355
Total assets 30 September 2019 480,694 98,454 124,285 703,433
Total liabilities 30 September 2020 336,192 61,096 904 398,192
Total liakilities 30 September 2019 334,810 58,842 17,123 410,775

Definition

An operating segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different to those of other operating segments. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker (the Chief Executive Officer) who reviews the operating
results on a regular basis and makes decisions on resource zliocation and assessing performance.

12
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Tower Limited

2 Underwriting activities

This section provides information on Tower's underwriting activities.

Tower collects premiums from customers in exchange for providing insurance coverage, These premiums are
recognised as revernue when they are earned by Tower, with a liabitity for unearned premiums recognised on the

balance sheet.

When customers suffer a loss that is covered by their policy, Tower will make payments to customers or
suppliers, which it recognises as claims expenses. To ensure that Tower's obligations to customers are properly
recorded within the financial statements, Tower recognises provisions for outstanding ¢laiens.

Ta manage Tower's risk and optimise its returns, Tower reinsures some of its exposure with reinsurance
companies. The premiums paid to reinsurers are recognised as an expense, while recoveries from reinsurers are

recognised as revenue.

2.1 Underwriting Revenue

Composition

S thousands 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19
Gross written premium 384,359 356,767
Motor premium refund* (7,200) -
Movement in unearned premium liability (4,607) (11,772)
Gross earned premium 372,552 344,995
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 25,711 14,985
Reinsurance commission 5,2-42 2,852
Insurance administration services commission 1,215 918
Commission revenue ) '.6,457' 3,771
Underwriting revenue “408720" 363,751

* Tower received lower motor vehicle claims in New Zealand due to travel restrictions imposed during the time
spent in New Zealand government’s COVID-19 alert level 3 and 4. On 21st April 2020 Tower Limited committed to
returning the benefit of lower New Zealand motor ctaims to customers through motor vehicle premium refunds.
Total premiums of $7.2m {excluding GST) are being refunded to motor customers. Gross Written Premiums were

reduced accordingly and a provision created (see note 2.9) to recognise this obligation,
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2.1 Underwriting Revenue (continued)

Recognition and mesasurement

Gross earned premium is recognised in the perted in which the premiums are earned during the term of the contract,
excluding taxes and levies collected on behalf of third parties. It includes a provision for expected future premium
cancellations {which is offset against net premium receivables, see note 2.7} and custoemer premium refunds (see note 2.9 for
more information). The proporticn of premiums nct earned in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income at
reporting date is recognised in the balance sheet as unearned premiums.

Reinsurance and other recoveries on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid, claims incurred but not reported and claims
incurred but not enough reperted are recognised as revenug. Recoveries are measured as the expected future receipts and
recognised when the claim is incurred.

Reinsurance commission revenue includes reirmbursements by reinsurers to cover part of Tower's management and sales
expense which are broadly recognised with the reference premium over the term of the reinsurance agreements,
Reinsurance commission Income can also include a proportion of expected profitability of business ceded to the reinsurer.
The final value of the variable commission is based on the achievement of a hurdle rate over time. This revenue is recognised
on a systematic basis and reassessed at each reporting date.

Insurance administration services commission includes a percentage of levies collected on behalf of third parties and is
recegnised at the point the levy coilected.
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2.2 Net claims expense

2.3

Composition

3 thousands Exc. Canterbury Canterbury earthquake Total
sarthoguake
30-5ep-20 30-5ep-19 30-5ep-20  30-5ep-19 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19
Gross claims expense 201,943 179,649 206,767 190,699
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue  {24,698) {12,333} (25,711)  {14,985)
Net claims expense 177,245 167,314 181,056 175,714

Recognition and measurement

Net claims expense is measured as the difference between net outstanding claims liability at the beginning and end of the
financial year plus any claims payments made net of reinsurance and other recoveries received during the financial year.

Please refer to note 2.4 for more infarmation.

Additional disclosures refated to the Canterbury earthquake events in 2010 and 2011 are provided in note 2.4.

Underwriting expense

Comipasition

S thousands

30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19

People costs 73,821 82,098
People costs classified as a claims handling expense (28,931) {24,947)
People costs capitalised during the year (4,187) (19,235)
People costs classified as an underwriting expense 40,703 37,916
Technoiogy 11,871
Amortisation 6,573
Marketing 8,770
External fees 6,639
Miscellaneous 4,794
Depreciation® 4,590 1,591
Movement in indirect deferred acguisition costs (1,416) (569)
Underwriting expenses 8'7,949 77,185

* Includes $2.6m (2019: nil} of depreciation on right-of-use assets. See note 6.3b for further information.
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2.4 Net outstanding claims

a. Compaosition

Exc. Canterbury

S thousands earthquake Canterbury earthquake Total

30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19 3¢-5ep-20 30-5ep-19 30-5ep-20 30-5ep-1%
Central estimate of future cash fiows 65,475 64,174 21,236 36,300 86,711 100,474
Claims handling expense 4,151 4,524 1,208 2,500 6,059 7,024
Risk Margin™® 4,325 3,762 10,652 12,800 14,577 16,562
Gross outstanding claims 73,951 72,460 33,796 51,600 107,747 124,060
Reinsurance recoveries (9,643) (8,657) (3,246) {4,800} (12,889) (13,457)
Net outstanding claims 64,308 63,803 30,550 46,800 94,858 110,603
Net claim payments within 12 months 56,110 53,084 12,220 35,100 68,330 88,184
Net claim payments after 12 months 8,198 10,719 18,330 11,700 26,528 22,419
Net outstanding claims 64,308 63,803 30,550 46,800 94,858 110,603

* Includes additional $5.0m (2019: $5.0m) for the Canterbury earthquake over and above the provision of the
Appointed Actuary, which is set at the 75th percentile of sufficiency. The Board will continue to review this
additional risk margin each half year and the $5.0m is expected to be released once the Canterbury outstanding

claims liability has sufficiently run off.

b. Reconciliation of movements in net outstanding claims liability

S thousands 2020 2019
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net

Balance hrought forward : --_1_2{%@5?_ - _-_::_:(;_3,_45_?_)-_- =110,603. 148,976 (28,985) 119,291
Claims expense - current year 209,766 (26:,084)' 183,682 177,786 (9,793) 167,993
Claims expense - priar year (2,999) 373 {2,626) 12,913 {5,192) 7,721
Incurred claims recognised in the IR PR
consolidated statement of comprehensive 206,767 (25,7_11) 181,056 190,699 (14,985) 175714
income SRR _
Claims paid and reinsurance and other ' S

! p ) sy (223,654} 26,444 (197,209) (216,104} 30,881 (185,223)
recoveries raised . ST _
Foreign exchange 573 . (185) - 408 489 (368) 121
Outstanding claims 107,747  (12,889) = 94,858 124,060 (13,457) 110,603
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2.4 Net outstanding claims (continued)}

¢. Development of claims

The foliowing table shows the development of net outstanding claims relative to the current estimate of ultimate
claims costs for the five most recent years.

S thousands

Ultimate claims cost estirmate Prior 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Total
At end of incident year 130,341 139,066 148,684 147,184 158,728

One year later 125,098 141,049 146,446 144,271

Two years later 131,176 14:2,424 146,318

Three years later 130,928 142,708 '

Four years later 130,571 _ _ . _ .

Ultimate elaims cost 130,571 _ 142,709 146,318 144,271 158,728
Cumulative payments {129,348) (141,112) (144,536) (138,622) {113,699}
Undiscounted central estimate 18,542 1223 1,597 1,782 5649 45029 73,822
Claims handling expense I 6,059
Risk margin 9,977
Additionat risk margin - Canterbury 5,000
Net outstanding claim liabijities _ . ' 54,858
Reinsurance recoveries ) ' 12,889
Gross outstanding claim liabilities [ .- 187,747

Prior year numbers have been restated at current year exchange rates to reflect the underlying development of
claims.

d. Actuarial information
The estimation of outstanding claims as at 30 September 2020 has been carried out by:
() Geoff Atkins, BA {ActuarDc), FIAA, FIAL, FANZIIF, Appointed Actuary - Canterbury earthquake claims; and
(§) John Feyter, B.Sc., FNZSA - all other outstanding claims

The New Zealand actuarial assessments are undertaken in accordance with the standards of the New Zealand Society
of Actuaries, in particular Professional Standard No. 30 "Valuations of General Insurance Claims". The Actuaries were
satisfied as to the nature, sufficiency and accuracy of the data used to determine the outstanding claims liability. The
outstanding claims liability is set by the Actuaries at a level that is appropriate and sustainable to cover the Group's
claims obiigations after having regard to the prevailing market eavironment and prudent industry practice.
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2.4 Net outstanding claims (continued)
e, Canterbury earthquakes

Cumulative impact of Canterbury earthquakes

As at 30 September 2020, Tower has 59 claims remaining to settle (2019: 109) as a result of the earthguakes
impacting the Canterbury region during 2010 and 2011. The following table presents the cumulative impact of
the four main Canterbury earthquake events on the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income. This
excludes the value of £QC recovery receivable related to Canterbury earthguakes (disclosed in note 2.7).

S thousands 2020 2019
Earthquake claims estimate {983,409) (981,600}
Reinsurance recoveries 741,570 742,199
Claim expense net of reinsurance recoveries (241,839) (239,401}
Reinsurance expense (25,045) (25,045)
Additional risk margin (5,000 {5,000)
Cumulative impact of Canterbury earthquakes before tax (271,884) {269,446}
Income tax 76,128 75,445
Cumulative impact of Canterbury earthguakes after tax {195,756} {194,001}

Canterbury earthquzke impact on profit or loss

5 thousands 2020 2019

Net claims expense® o 2,438 7,139

Excludes any impact from changes in the value of the EQC receivable.
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2.4 Net outstanding claims (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Gross outstanding claims liability comprises a central estimate of future cash outflows and a risk margin for uncertainty. Tower
has not applied a discount given the short tail nature of the portfolio and the low interest rate envircnment,

The outstanding claims liability is measured at the central estimate of future cash outflows relating to claims incurred prior to
the reporting date including direct and indirect claims handiing costs. The liability is measured based on the advice of the
Appointed Actuary or on valuations which have been peer reviewed by the Appointed Actuary, It is intended to include no
deliberate or unconscious bias toward over or under-estimation. Given the uncertainty in establishing the liability, it is likely the
final cutcome will differ from the criginal liability estabtished. Changes in the claim estimates are recognised in profit or loss in
the reporting pericd in which the estimates are changed.

The gross outstanging claim liabilities also include a risk margin that relates to the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate off
the future payments. The risk margin represents the amount by which the lability recognised in the financial statements is
greater than the actuariai estimate. Tower currently applies a 75% probabitity of adequacy to the outstanding claims liability
which means there is a 1-in-4 chance all future cfaim payments will exceed the overall reserve held.

Urcertainties surrounding the liability estimation process include those relating to the available data, actuarial models and
assumptions, the statistical uncertainty associated with the general insurance run-off process and external risks.

Net cutstanding claims liability is calculated by deducting reinsurance and other recoveries from gross outstanding claims.
Reinsurance and other recoveries on outstanding claims are recognised as income with the corresponding asset being recognised
on the balance sheet.
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2.4 Net outstanding ctaims (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Outstanding claims liability (excluding Canterbury Earthquakes)

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability involves a number of key assumptions. Tower's estimation uses
company specific data, relevant industry data and general econemic data for each majar class of business. The estimation
process factors in a number of considerations including the risks to which the business is exposed to at a point in time,
claim frequency and severity, historical trends in the development of claims as well as legal, social and economic factors
that may affect each class of business.

Assumption 2020 2019
Expected future ¢taims development proportion 50.5% 41.3%
Claims handling expense ratio 7.1% 7.3%
Risk margin 7.2% 7.1%

Expected future claims development proportion

This is the proportion of additional claims cost that is expected to be recognised in the future for BAU claims that have
already heen reported. The assumption is expressed as a proportion of current case estimates for open claims and
recognised in the balance sheet as an outstanding claims liability.

Claims kondling expense ratio

This reflects the expected cost to administer future claims. The ratio is calculated based en historical experience of claims
handling costs.

Risk margin

Risk margins are calculated for outstanding claims in each country separately and a diversification benefit is calculated
taking into account the uncorrefated effect of random risk. The total risk margin percentage shown is calculated on a
weighted average basis.

Canterbury Earthquake outstanding claims ligbility

Assurnptions are made for the estimation of outstanding claims related to the Canterbury earthquakes. The key
assumptions are the number of new overcap or litigated claims and re-opened claims and associated costs. Other
elements of judgement include costs {including expected building costs) for settling open claims, the apportionment of
claim costs between the four main earthguake events; fature claim management expenses and assessment of the risk™

margin.

Assumption 2020 2019
Number of new overcap and new litigated claims ; 68 88
Average cost of new overcap or new litigated claim ] _:-$1_OII_7,EJ_DO $106,000
Number of re-opened claims . . 373 169

Average cost of re-opened claim 57,509 $10,100

|
New overcap ond new litigated claims !
i

New overcap claims are typically for properties that have previously been managed by EQC but where damage is now
assessed as being more extensive than previously thought and there is now an insurance claim payable.

New litigated claims are existing or future new claims that are referred to either the Insurance Tribunal or the High Court
for resolution. )

Number of re-opened claims

Re-opened claims arise where additional liability arises for additional scope not previously identified or where a repair has
failed or where another expense is payabte for a claim that is currently closed.
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2.4 Net outstanding claims {continued)

f. Sensitivity Analysis

The impact on profit or [oss of changes in key assumptions used in the calculation of the outstanding claims liabitities
is summarised below. Each change has been calculated in isolation from the other variables before income tax.

CGutstanding claims excluding Canterbury earthquake

5 thousands

Impact on profit or loss

Movement in

assumption 2020 2019

Expected future claims development + 10% 1,771 1,522
-10% (1,771) (1,522)

Claims handling expense ratio + 10% 415 448
- 10% (415) {448)

Risk margin + 10% 431 370
-10% (431) (370)

Canterbury earthquake outstanding claims

S thousends

Impact on profit or loss

Movement in

. 2020 2019
assumption

+35% (2,560) (3,260)
Number of new overcap or new litigated claims o

-35% 2,560 3,260

+20% (1’460) (1,850)
Change in average cost of a new overcap or new litigated claim

-20% 1,460 1,860

+35% (980) (600)
Number of reopened claims :

-35% 980 600

+20% (560) {340)
Change in average cost of a reopened claim

-20% 560 340
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2.5 Unearned premium liability

Reconciliation

5 thousands 2020 2019
Opening balance 187,855 175,551
Premiums written during the year 377,159 356,767
Premiums earned during the year (372,552) {344,995)
Unearned premium maovement 4,607 11,772
Unearned premium balance purchased*® 12,003 -

Foreign exchange movements (1,013} 532
Unearned premium liability 203,452 187,855

* Unearned premium balance acquired through the purchase of customer relationships {see note 6.2}. As at 30
September 2020 this had reduced to $1.2m representing $10.8m premium earned during the year.

The majority of unearned premiums is a current liability as at 30 September 2020 and is presented net of
cancellation provisions.

Recognition and measurement

Unearned premium liability is the portion of premiums written that are yet to be earned in the consclidated statement of
comprehensive income. i s calculated based on: the term of the risk and in accordance with the expected pattern of the
incidence of risk underwritten using an appropriate pro-rate method.

Adeguacy of unearned premium Hability

Tower undertakes a liability adequacy test ("LAT") to determine whether the unearned premium liability is
sufficient to pay future claims net of reinsurance recoveries.

If the present value of expected future net claims including & risk margin (central estimate net claims} exceeds the
unearned premium liabilities adjusted for deferred reinsurance premium relating to future business not yet written
{adjusted unearned premium) the unearned premium lizbility is deemed deficient. This deficiency is immediately
recognised in profit or loss. In recognising the deficiency, Tower will first write down any related intangible assets
and then deferred acquisition costs before recognising an unexpired risk liability.

The unearned premium liabilities as at 30 September 2020 were sufficient across all husinesses except for Fiji, NPI
and Vanuatu (2019: Fiji and NPI) where small deficits were recognised. The total deficit recognised as a charge
against deferred acquisition cost was $440,600 (2019: $331,000).

% [ 2020 2019
;Central estimate net claims as a % of unearned premium liability { T .'4_4.5% 42,9%
Risk margin as a % of net claims ‘ o ;ﬁ.z%' 10.0%

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The LAT is conducted using a central estimate of premium liability adjusted for risk margin and it is carried out on an individual
country basis. The testis based cn prospective information and sc is heavily dependent on assumptions and judgements.
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2.6 Deferred insurance costs

Reconciliation

S thousands

Defarred acquisition costs

Deferred outwards
reinsurance expense

Deferred insurance costs

2020 2019 2020 2018 2020 2019
Balance bought forward 23,736 22,5495 8,794 8,475 32,530 31,070
Costs deferred 42,136 44,977 15,396 14,763 57,532 59,740
Amortisation expense (40,661) (43,805) {14,586) {14,683) ({55,247) (58,488)
Foreign exchange movements 9 (33) (157} 239 {148) 208
Closing balance 25,220 23,736 9,447 8,754 34,667 32,530

Deferred insurance costs are expected to be amortised within 12 months from reporting date.

Recognition and measurement

Acquisition costs comprises costs incurred in obtaining and recording general insurance contracts such as advertising
expenses, sales expenses and other underwriting expenses. These costs are initlally capitalised and then expensed in
line with the earning pattern of the related premium. Deferred acquisition costs at the reporting date represent the
acquisition costs related to unearned premium.

Qutwards reinsurance expense reflects premiums ceded to reinsurers and is recognised as an expense in accordance
with the pattern of reinsurance service received, Deferred outwards reinsurance expense at the reporting date
represents outwards reinsurance expenses related to unearned premium.
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2.7 Receivables

Composition

S thousands 2020 2019
Gross premium receivables 171,041 154,983
Provision for impairment {1,383} {1,100}
Premium receivable 169,658 153,883
BAL) reinsurance recoveries 15,105 8,604
Canterbury earthguake reinsurance recoveries 3,246 5,615
Other recoveries 5,262 5,097
Reinsurance and other recoveries 23,613 14,316
Canterbury earthquake 52,883 69,900
Kaikoura earthguake - 363
EQC receivable 52,883 70,263
Prepayments 2,664 2,572
Miscellaneous receivables 1,928 1,467
Receivables 250,7'46 247,501
Receivable within 12 months 250,746 174,873
Receivable in greater than 12 months - 72,628
Receivables 250,746 247,501

Recognition and measurement

Receivables (inctusive of GST) are recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost less any
impairment.

Tower’s premium receivables and reinsurance and other recoverias arise from insurance contracts, These receivahles are
impaired if there is objective evidence that Tower will not he able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivable.

The remainder of Tower's receivables are assessed for impairment based on expected credit losses. The EQC receivable is the
only material item that falls into this category and is discussed further in the sub-note below.

24 recovery receivable relsted to Can%erbury earthguakes

On 24 November 2020, Tower LirJFited entered iato a settlement agreement with EQC regarding the recover\) of
claims costs related to the 2010 gnd 2011 Christchurch Earthquakes. Under the settlement agreement Towetwili
receive $53.6m of the $70.3m griss recovery receivable recognised as of 30 September 2020. This has resulted in
a write-off of the residual amount of $16.7m.

The write off amount has been increased by expected costs to recover the receivable of 50.7m in legal costs and
offset by an adjustment to the EQC related reinsurance payable of 54.3m [note 2.8). This results in an impairment
expense of $13.1m and an EQC receivable carrying value of $52.9m (2019: $69.9m).
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2.8 Payables

Composition

5 thousands 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19
Trade payables 13,527 12,624
GST payable 20,519 18,395
EQC receivable payable to reinsurers 10,741 16,900
EQC & Fire Service levies payable 11,068 11,332
Reinsurance premium payable 3,414 5,494
Other 7,331 11,162
Payables 66,600 75,907
Payable within 12 months 66,600 59,007
Payable in greater than 12 months - 16,900
Payables 66,600 75,907

Recognitien and maasurement

Payables are stated at the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future inclusive of GST. GST payable represents
the net amount payable to the respective tax authorities,
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2.9 Provisions

Composition

S thousands 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19
Annual ieave and other employee henefits 6,901 6,802
Customer premium refunds 2,422 -
Other 208 -
Provisions 9,531 6,802
Payahle within 12 months 9,157 6,406
Payable in greater than 12 months 374 396
Provisions 9,531 6,802

Recognition and measurement

Tower recognises a provision when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligaticn. Tower's provision represents the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

2.10 Assets backing insurance liabilities

Tower has determined that all assets within its insurance companies are held to back insurance liabilities, with
the exception of: (i) property, plant and equipment; (i) right of use assets, (iii) intangible assets; and (iv)
investments in operating subsidiaries. Assets backing insurance liabilities are managed in accordance with
approved investment mandate agreements on a fair value basis and are reported to the board on that basis.
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3 Investments

Tower invests funds collected as premiums and provided by shareholders to ensure it can meet its obligations to
pay claims and expenses and to generate a return to support its profitability. Tower has a low risk tolerance and
therefore the majority of its investments are in investment grade supranational and government bonds, and term
deposits,

3.1 Investment income

S thousands 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19

Interest income 7,328 8,141
Net reaiised (loss)/gain (3,277) 42
Net unrealised loss {241) (664)
Investment income 5,810 7,519

Met realised losses relate to the maturity of fixed interest bonds, with interest coupon rates higher than market
rates, purchased at higher than face value. The corresponding higher interest received is reflected in the interest
in¢come amount.

Recognition and measurement

Tower's investment income is primarily made up of interest income on fixed interest investments and fair value gains or Iosses
on its investment assets. Both are recognised in the pericd that they are earned through profit or loss.

3.2 Investments

S thousands 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19

Fixed interest investments 237,298 233,527

Equity investment 611
Property investment 34 34
Investments 237,804 234,172

Recognition and measurament

Tower's investment assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss, Investment assets are initially recognised at fair
value and are remeasured to fair value through profit or loss at each reporting date. Tower's approach to measuring the fair
value of these assets is covered in the foliowing note,

Purchases and sales of investmeants are recognised at the date which Tower commits tc buy or seli the assets {i.e. trade date).
Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive fuiure cash flows from the assets have expired, or have been
transferred, and substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred.
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3.3 Fair value hierarchy

Tower designates its investments at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with its Treasury
poticy. It categorises its investments into three levels based on the inputs available to measure fair

value:

Level 1 Fair vaiue is calcutated using quoted prices in active markets. Tower
currently does not have any Level I investments.

Level 2 Investment valuations are based on direct or indirect observable data
other than quoted prices included in Level 1. Level 2 inputs include: (1)
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; (2) quoted prices for assets or
liabilities that are not traded in an active market; or (3} other observable
market data that can be used for valuation purposes. Tower investments
inchuded in this category include government and corporate debt where
the market is considered to be lacking sufficient depth to be considered
active and part ownership of a property that is rented cut to staff.

Level 3 Investment valuation is based on unobservable market data. Tower's
equity investment in the unlisted reinsurance company Pacific Re is the
only investment in this category. Tower agreed to sell the investment to a
third party in November 2020 at the carrying value reflected above.

S thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 30 September 2020

Fixed interest investments - 237,298 - 237,298

Equity investment - - 572 572

Property investment - 34 - 34

Investments - 237,332 572 237,904

As at 30 September 2019

Fixed interest investments - 233,527 - 233,527

Equity investment - - 611 611

Property investment - 34 - 34

Investments - 233,561 611 234,172

There have been no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy during the current financial

period {30 September 2019: nil),
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4 Risk Management

Tower is exposed to multiple risks as it works to set things right for its customers and their communities whikst
maximising returns for its shareholders. Everyone across the organisation is responsible for ensuring that Tower's
risks are managed and controlied on a day-to-day basis.

4.1 Rislk management overview

Tower’s approach to achieving effective risk management is to embed a risk-aware culture where everyone across
the organisation (including contractors and third parties) is responsible for managing risk.

Tower’s Board expresses its appetite for risk in a Risk Appetite Statement, which:

{i) Gives clear concise guidance to management of parameters for risk taking.

{ii) Embeds risk management into strategic and decision-making processes.

{iii} Facilitates risk to be managed at all levels of the organisation through a structured process to identify risk,
and the allocation of clear, personal responsibility for management of identified risks by assigned risk
owners.

The Board then approves and adopts: (i} the Risk Management Strategy (RMS} which is the central document that
explains how Tower effectively manages risk within the business; and (ii) the Reinsurance Management Strategy
(ReMS} which describes the systemns, structures, and processes which collectively ensures Tower's reinsurance
arrangements and operations are prudently managed. These documents are approved annually by the Board,

The Board has delegated its responsibility to the Risk Committee to provide oversight of risk management
practices and provide advice to the Board and management when reguired. 1n addition, the Risk Committee also
manitors the effectiveness of Tower’s risk management function which is overseen by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO).
The CRO provides regular reports to the Risk Committee on the operation of the Risk Management Framework
(RMF), the status of material risks, risk and compliance incidents and risk framework changes.

Tower has embedded an RMF with clear accountahifities and risk ownership to ensure that Tower identifies,
manages, mitigates and reports on all key risks and controls through the three lines of defence model.

(i} First {ine: Operational management has ownership, responsibility and accountabifity for directly identifying,
assessing, controiling and mitigating key risks which prevent them from achieving business objectives.

{ii) Second Line: Tower’s Risk and Compliance Functions are responsible for developing and implementing
effective risk and compliance management processes; providing advisory support to the first line of
defence and constructively challenging operational management and risk and obligation owners to ensure
positive assurance.

{ifi) Third line: Internal Audit is responsible and accountable for providing an independent and objective view of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management, governance and internal control
framework, Internal audit, along with other groups such as external audit, report independentiy to the
Board and/or the Audit Committee.

The RMF is supported by a suite of policies that address the risks and compliance obfigations covered in this
section.
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4.2 Strategic risk

Strategic risk is the risk that internal or external factors compromise Tower's ability to execute its strategy or
achieve its strategic objectives. Strategic risk is managed through:

(i) Monitoring and managing performance against Board approved plan and targets

{if} Board leading an annuzl strategy and planning process which considers our performance, competitor

positioning and strategic opportunities

(i) tdentifying and managing emerging risks using established governance processes and forums

4.3 Insurance risk

[nsurance risk is the risk that for any class of risk insured, the present vaiue of actual claims payahle wili exceed
the present value of actual premium revenues generated (net of reinsurance}. This risk is inherent in Tower's
operations and arises and manifests through underwriting, insurance concentration and reserving risk,

a. Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk refers to the risk that claims arising are higher (or lower) than assurmed in pricing due to bad
experience including catastrophes, weakness in controls over underwriting or portfolio management, or claims
management issues. Tower has established the following key controfs to mitigate this risk:

(i)

(i}

{iti)

Use of comprehensive management information systems and actuarial models to price products based an
historical claims frequencies and claims severity averages, adjusted for inftation and modelled
catastrophes, trended forward to recognise anticipated changes in claims patterns after making
allowance for other costs incurred by the Group.

Passing elements of insurance risk to reinsurers. Tower's Board determines a maximum level of risk to be
retained by the Group as a whole.

Tower's reinsurance programme is structured to adequately protect the solvency and capital positions of
the insurance business. The adequacy of reinsurance cover is modelled by assessing Tower's exposure
under a range of scenarios. The piausible scenario that has the most financial significance for Tower is a
major Wellington earthquake. Each year, as part of setting the coming year's reinsurance cover,
comprehensive modelling of the event probahility and amount of the Group's exposure is undertaken.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteriz and pricing with specific
underwriting autharities that set clear parameters for the business acceptance.

30




Tower Limited

4.3

C

Insurance risk {continued)

. Concentration risk

Concentration risk refers to the risk of underwriting a number of like risks, where the same or similar loss
events have the potential to produce claims from many of Tower's customers at the same time, Tower is

particularly subject to concentration risks in the following variety of forms:

{i) Geographic concentration risk - Tower purchases a ¢atastrophe reinsurance programme to protect

against a modelled 1-in-1000 years whole of portfolio catastrophe loss. In addition it takes out additional
aggregate reinsurance cover for large events which fall outside the catastrophe reinsurance programme
and tends to cover weather events in New Zealand and across the Pacific.

{ii)  Product concentration risk - Tower's business is weighted towards the NZ general insurance market
where its risks are concentrated in house insurance {Home & Contents) and motor insurance. Tower
limits its exposure through proportionate reinsurance arrangements. The tabie below illustrates the

diversity of Tower's operations,

Gross written premium (%) 2020 2019

NZ  Pacific Total NZ  Pacific Total
Home 51% 4% 55% 51% 4% 55%
Motor 30% 5% 35% 29% 5% 34%
Commercial 1% 6% 7% 2% 5% 7%
Liability 1% 0% 1% i% 0% 1%
Workers compensation 0% 1% 1% 0% 1% 1%
Other 0% 1% 1% 1% 1% 2%
Total 83% 17% 100%% 83% 17% 100%

Tower has limited exposure to long-tail classes (which comprises part of “liakility" and "workers

compensation”). Long-tail classes have increased uncertainty of the ultimate cost of claims due to the

additional period of time to settlement.

Reserving risk

Reserving risk is managed through the actuarial valuation of insurance liabilities and monitoring of the

probability of adequacy booked reserves. The valuation of the net central estimate is performed by qualified

and experienced actuaries. The central estimate is subject to a comarehensive review at least annually.
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4.4 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that arises when a counterparty fails to meet their financial obligations to Tower in
accordance with the agreed terms. Tower's exposure to credit risk primarily resuits from transactions with security
issuers, reinsurers and pelicyholders.

a. lnvestment and treasury

Tower manages its investment and treasury credit risks in line with limits set by the Board:

(i} New Zealand cash deposits that are internally managed are limited to banks with a minimum Standard &
Poor's (5&P) AA- credit rating.

(i) Cash deposits and investments that are managed by external investment managers are limited to
counterparties with a minimum S&P A- credit rating,

(i) Tower Insurance holds deposits and invests in Pacific regional investment markets through its Pacific Island
operations to comply with local statutory requirements and in accordance with Tower Insurance investment
policies. These deposits and investments generally have low credit ratings representing the majority of the
value included in the "Below BBB' and unrated categaries in the table below. This includes deposits and
investments with Australian bank subsidiaries that comprise 83% (2019: 66%) of "not rated” category.

S thousands Cash and Cash Equivalents Fixed Interest Investments Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
AAA - - 106,805 111,950 106,805 111,950
AA 55,478 47,585 90,859 89,735 146,337 137,320
A - - 29,737 8,027 29,737 8,027
BBB - - - - - -
Below BBB 5,409 2,898 3,456 11,892 8,365 14,790
Not rated 18,221 11,535 g, 441 11,923 VU366 23,458
Total 80,108 62,018 237,298 233,527 317,406 295,545

b. Reinsurance

Tower manages its reinsurance programme in line with the ReMS. Tower seeks to manage the guantum and
volatility of insurance risk in order to reduce exposure and overall cost.

Tower's policy is to only deal with reinsurers with a credit rating of S&P "A-" or better unless local statutory
requirements dictate otherwise. Additional requirements of the palicy is for no individual reinsurer to have more
than 25% share of the overall programme and Tower is prohibited frem offering inwards reinsurance to external
entities. The following table provides details on Tower's exposure to reinsurance recoveries:
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4.4 Credit risk {continued)

S thousands Reinsurance on:
Qutstanding claims Paid claims Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
AAA - - - - - -
AA 6,738 5,052 3,490 185 10,228 5,237
A 6,106 8,215 1,986 572 8,092 8,787
BBB - -
Below BBB - - - R
Not rated 29 190 2 6 31 196
Total 12,873 13,457 5,478 763 18,351 14,220

The following table provides further information regarding the ageing of reinsurance recoveries on paid claims

at the balance date.

S thousands Past due
Mot due
1 month l1to2 2t03 QOver 3 total
months months months

As at 30 September 2020
Reinsurance recoveries on paid

) P 5,379 - - 98 5,478
claims
As at 30 September 2019
Reinsurance recoveries on paid

685 - 78 763

claims

¢. Premium receivable

Tower's premium receivable balance primarily relates to policies which are paid on either a fortnightly or
monthly basis. Payment default or policy cancellation - subject to the terms of the policyhalder's contract - will
resuit in the termination of the insurance contract eliminating both the credit risk and insurance risk.

S thousands

Past due
Not due* 1to2 2to3 Over 3
1 month Total
months months manths
As at 30 September 2020
Net premium receivable 162,935 3,705 1,992 936 40 169,658
As at 30 September 2019
Net premium receivable 143,331 5,552 3,371 991 638 153,883

* this includes premiums that are fess than 30 days outstanding (which are owed but not past due) of $7.1m

(2019: 55.6m).
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4.5

Limited

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of adverse impacts on investment earnings resulting from changes in market factors.
Tower's market risk is predominately as a resuit of changes in the value of the New 2ealand doliar {currency

risk) and interest rate movements. Tower's approach to managing market risk is underpinned by its Treasury

Policy as approved by the Board.

Currency risk

Tower's currency exposure arises from the transtation of foreign onerations into Tower's functional currency
(currency transiation risk) or due to transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

of a controlled entity {operational currency risk). The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the US

doliar, Fijian dollar and PNG kina.

Tower's principal currency risk is currency translation {where movement impacts equity). Tower generally
elects not to hedge this risk as it is difficuit given the size and nature of the currency markets in the Pacific.

Tower seeks to minimise its net exposure to foreign operational risk by actively seeking to return surplus cash

and capital to the parent company.

Operational currency risk imgpacts profit and generally arises from:

{i) Procurement of goods and services denominated in foreign currencies. Tower may enter into hedges for
future transactions, using authorised instruments, provided that the timing and amount of those future

transactions can be estimated with a reasonable degree of certainty,

(i) Investment assets managed by the external investment manager that are denominated in foreign
currencies. Tower's Board set limits for the managemant of currency risk based on prudent asset
management practice. Regular reviews are conducted to ensure that these limits are adhered to.

The following table demonstrates the impact of the New Zealand dollar weakening or strengthening against the
most significant currencies for which Tower has foreign exchange exposure hoiding all other variables constant.

S thousands Direct impact on equity Impact on profit or loss
2020 2019 2020 2019

New Zealand Dollar - USD e R

Currency strengthens by 10% (407) (271) 17 30

Currency weakens by 10% 497 331 (20) (37)

New Zealand Dollar - Fijian Dollar

Currency strengthens by 10% {1,350) (1,229} (73) (74}

Currency weakens by 10% 1,650 1,502 99 90

New Zealand Dollar - PNG Kina

Currency strengthens by 10% {1,078) {965) 57 39

Currency weakens by 10% 1,318 1,180 (70} (48)
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4.5 Market risk {continued)

b. Interest rate risk

Tower is exposed to interest rate risk through its holdings in interest-bearing assets. Interest-bearing assets with
a floating interest rate expose Tower to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas fixed interest investments expose
Tower to fair value interest rate risk.

Tower's interest rate risk primarily arises from fluctuations in the valuation of fixed-interest investments
recognised at fair value and from the underwriting of general insurance contracts, which creates exposure to the
risk that interest rate movements materially impact the fair value of the insurance liabilities. Interest rate risk
arises to the extent that there is 2 mismatch which arises between the two.

Fixed-interest investments are measured at fair vaiue through profit or toss. Movements in interest rates impact
the fair value of interest-bearing financiai assets and therefore impact profit or loss (there is no direct impact on
equity}. The impact of a 0.5% increase or decrease in interest rates on fixed intarest investments is shown below
{holding everything else constant}. The assumption made for 0.5% decrease in interest rates is that the lower
bound is capped at 0% as negative rates on fixed interest investments are highly unlikely.

S thousands Impact on grofit or loss
2020 2019

Interest rates increase by 0.5% {921) (690}

Interest rates decrease by 0.5% 750 765

Tower manages its interest rate risk through Board approved investment management guidetines that have
regard to policyholder expectations and risks and to target surplus for solvency as advised by the Appointed
Actuary.

4.6 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk arises where liabilities cannot be met as they fall due as a result of insufficient funds and/or illiquid
asset portfolios. Tower mitigates this risk through maintaining sufficient liquid assets to ensure that it can meet
all obligations on a fimely basis.

Tower is primarily exposed to liquidity risk through its obligations to make payment for claims of unknown
amounts on unknown dates. Fixed-interest investrments can generally be readily sold or exchanged for cash to
settle claims and are managed in accordance with the policy of broadly matching the overall maturity profiie to
the estimated pattern of claim payments. This is illustrated in the table below.

Net outstanding claims

S thousands Cash and Investments

liability

2020 2019 2020 2019
Floating interest rate (at cali) - - 80,108 62,018
Within 3 months 32,943 46,797 36,982 16,306
3to 6 months 15,140 24,430 53,797 48,467
6to 12 months 20,246 16,957 55,352 50,266
After 12 months 26,529 22,419 91,167 118,488
Total 84,858 110,603 317,406 295,545
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4.7 Capital management risk

Capital risk is the risk that capital is insufficient or not of the best form to provide a buffer against losses arising
from unanticipated events, while also maximising the efficient use of capital with a view to enhancing growth
and returns and adding long-term value to Tower's shareholders.

Tower has a documented description of its capital management process which sets out Tower's principles,
approaches, and processes in relation to capital management that enables it to operate at an appropriate level
of target solveney capital which is within the bounds of Tower's risk appetite.

The capital management process allows the Board, management, rating agencies and the regulator to
understand Tower's approach to capital management, including requirements for formulating capital targets,
and monitoring, reporting and remediating capital as required.

The operation of the capital management process is reported annuslly to the Board together with a forward-
looking estimate of expected capital utifisation and capital resilience. In addition, Tower carries out stress,
reverse stress and scenario testing to ensure the level of capital is appropriate given its risk appetite.

a. Repulatory solvency capital

The Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) is the prudential regulator and supervisor of all insurers carrying on
insurance business in New Zealand, and is responsibie for administering the Insurance {Prudential Supervision)
Act 2010. Tower measures the adequacy of capital against the Solvency Standards for Non-life Insurance
Business published by the RBNZ atongside additional capitat held to meet RBNZ minimum requirements and
any further capital as determined by the Board.

Foreign operations are subject to regulatory oversight in the relevant jurisdiction. It is Tower's policy to ensure
that each of the licenced insurers in the Group maintain an adequate capital position within the requirements
of the relevant regulator.

During the year ended 30 September 2020 the Group cemplied with all externally imposed capital
requirements {2019: complied}.

The RBNZ reguires that Tower mainzain a minimum solvency margin of at least 550.0m (2019: $50.0m). Tower
Limited's group and parent solvency margin are iliustrated in the table below.

S thousands 2020% 2019

Parent Group Parent Group
Actual sotvency capital 150,451 181,214 155,894 182,197
Minimum solvency capital 52,342 65,728 56,598 73,276
Solvency margin 98,110 115,485 99,296 108,921
Solvency ratio 287% 276% 275% 249%

* The solvency figures presented above for 2020 are based on the new amalgamated structure that came into
effect 30 September 2020 whereas those for 2019 represent those of Tower insurance Limited . The soivency
margin reduced by $2.5m at 30 September 2020 for the Parent and Group as a result of the amlagamation.

Tower's license condition was amended during the year (effective 31 October 2019) where the net £QC
receivabie (2020: 542.1m; 2019: 553.0m) is specifically excluded from the calculation of solvency. As a result
Tower issued $45m of ordinary share capital on 31 Qctober 2019, If the change to the license condition and
the share issue had both applied at 30 September 2019, the net impact would have been a reduction in Tower
Insurance Limited's solvency margin by 57.6m.

The solvency presented as of 30 September 2020 does not reflect any possible change to the license condition
as a result of the commercial settlement of the EQC receivable on 24 Novemnber 2020. »
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4.7 Capital management risk {continued}

b.

4.8

4.9

Capital composition

The balance sheet capital mix at reporting date is shown in the table below:

S thousands 2020 2019
Total shareholder equity 345,003 290,857
Standby credit {facility) . 15,000
Total 345,003 305,857

. Financial strength rating

Tower Limited has an insurer financial strength rating of 'A- (Excellent) and a long-term issuer credit rating of "a-
" as affirmed by international rating agency AM Best Company Inc. with an effective date of 2 October 2020.
This rating has been calculated for the amalgamated entity.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss due to inadequate or faited internal processes or systems, human error or
from external events.

Tower's approach is to proactively manage our operational risks to mitigate potential customer detriment,
regulatory or legal censure, financiat and reputational impacts.

Tower has in place appropriate operational processes and systems, including prevention and detection
measures. These include processes which seek to ensure Tower can absorb and/or adapt to internal or
external occurrences that could disrupt business operations.

Management and staff are responsible for identifying, assessing and managing operational risks in accordance
with their roles and responsibilities. Failures in controls are recorded and then actively monitored and
managed. Incidents are managed by the first line of defence and overseen by the second line of defence, with
angoing reporting to management and the Risk Committee.

Regulatory and compliance risk

Regulatory and compliance risk is defined as the risk of legal, regulatory or reputationat impacts arising from
failure to manage compliance obligations, or failure to anticipate and prepare for changes in the regulatory
environment.

Tower engages with regulators and regularly monitors developments in regulatory requirements to support
angoing compliance.
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4.10

4.11

Conduct risk

Conduct risk is defined as the risk that conduct may contribute to poor outcomes for customers.

Tower manages Conduct risk through a number of measures including undertaking ongoing product reviews 1o
ensure products are delivering good customer outcomes, reviewing customer feedback to identify conduct
trends or issues, managing vulnerable customers, holding workshops with frontline staff to identify potential
conduct issues and embedding and monitoring controls across the business to deliver good customer
outcomes.

There is rabust governance in place to oversee Tower’s conduct risk management programme including
reporting to the Board, Executive Committees and monthly conduct working groups with representatives from
across Tawer.

Cyber risk

Cyber risk is any risk associated with financial loss, disruption or damage to the reputation of Tower resulting
from either the faiture, or unauthorised or erroneous use of its information systems.

Tower's approach to Cyber risk is to proactively identify, protect against, monitor for and respond to those
cyber threats seen to be targeting the organisation. Tower has identified the top cyber risks facing it and there
is a programme of work in place to deliver risk reduction initiatives to bring those risks within Tower's risk
appetite. A dedicated security function is responsible for providing ongoing management of security technical
controls, operationai tasks and processes across the organisation.

An Information Security Governance Forum meets on a quarterly basis to set the security policy direction, to
review security programme risk reduction progress and overalf security function effectiveness.
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5 Capital Structure

This section provides information about how Tower finances its operations through equity, Tower's capital
position provides financial security to its custorners, employees and other stakeholders whilst operating within
the capital requirements set by regulators.

5.1 Borrowings

During September 2020 Tower repaid the total amount drawn down under the cash advance facility agreement of
$15.0m. Atthe same time, it reached agreement with Bank of New Zeatand to bring forward the expiry date of
the agreement to 30 September 2020 {2019: 27 March 2023},

Total borrowing costs for the year were 50.8m (2019: $0.3m)}, none of which were capitalised.

5.2 Contributed equity

S thousands 30-5ep-20 30-Sep-18
Opening balance 206,990 209,990
Issue of share capital & 45,000 -
Cancellation of shares on amalgamation (254,990)

Recognition of shares on amalgamation ™ 492,424 -
Total contributed equity 492,424 209,990
Represented by:

Opening balance 211,107,758 211,107,758
Issued shares * 45,000,000

Cancellation of shares on amalgamation (256,107,758} -
Recognition of shares on amalgamation ' e 21, 08T, 238 -
Total shares on issue 421,647,258 211,107,758

(i) On 24 September 2019 the prior Tower Limited invited its eligible shareholders to subscribe to a rights issue of
1 new share for every 4 existing shares held at the record date on 2 October 2019 at a price of NZD0.56 {or
AUDD.54) for each new share. The issue was fully subscribed on 23 October 2019, Subsequent to this, on 31
October 2019 the Company issued $45m of new capital to its immediate shareholder, Tower Financial Services
Group Limited.

(i) On 30 September 2020, Tower Insurance Limited was renamed Tower Limited {the Company} and was
amalgamated by way of a short form amalgamation under the Companies Act 1993 with its ultimate parent,
Tawer Limited (the prior Tower Limited); its parent, Tower Financial Services Groug Limited; and another
subsidiary of Tower Limited, Tower New Zealand Limited. At this date the Company's existing share capital of
$255m {including the issue of $45m new share capital) was cancelied withaut payment or other consideration,
and instead the shares of the prior Tower Limited (of $492m} became the shares of the Company, so that the
sharehoiders of the prior Tower Limited became shareholders of the Company.

Ordinary shares issued by the Company are classified as equity and are recognised at fair value less direct issue
costs. All shares rank equally with one vote attached to each share. There is no par value for each share.
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5.3 Reserves

S thousands 30-5ep-20  30-5ep-19
Opening balance {3,687) (4,397)
Currency translation differences arising during the year {1,288} 700
Foreign currency transiation reserve {4,985) (3,697)
Opening balance 1,515 1,242
Gain on revaluation 41 305
Deferred tax on revaluation 8 (32}
Asset revaluation reserve 1,564 1,515
Capital reserve 11,990 11,986

Opening balance . -

Impact of amalgamation {113,000} -
Separation reserve {113,000) -
Reserves {104,431) 9,808

Recognition and measurement

The assets and liabilities of entities whose functional currency is not the New Zealand dollar are translated at the exchange rates
ruting at balance date. Revenue and expense items are {ranslated at a rate appreximating the spot rate at the transaction date.
Exchange rate differences are taken to the foreign currency translation reserve.

Tower's land and buildings are valued at fair value less accumulated depreciation, Any surplus on revaluation of these items is
transferred directly to the asset revaluation reserve unless it offsets a previous decrease in value recognised in profit or loss in
which case it is recognised in the consolidated statement of coreprehensive income.

On 30 September 2020, the Company was amalgamated with other Tower entities, as described in note 8.2. On this date, the
separation reserve was recognised. The separation reserve was originally created in the prior Tower Limited in 2007 at the time
of the demerger of the New Zeatand and Australian businesses in accordance with & ruling provided by the Australian Fax Office
(ATQ). It will be carried forward indefinitely to meet the requirements of the ATQ.

5.4 Net tangible assets per share

S dollars 30-Sep-20  30-Sep-19

Net tangible assets per share 0.56 0.56

Net tangibie assets per share have been calculated using the net assets as per the balance sheet adjusted for
intangible assets (including goodwill} and deferred tax assets divided by total shares on issue. Net tangible assets
per share as at 30 September 2019 has been calculated using the number of ordinary shares of the prior Tower
Limited as at that date.
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5.5 Earnings per share

30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19

Profit attributable to shareholders ($ thousands) 11,892 16,565

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted earnings per

share {number of shares) 417,172,654 350,442,688

Basic and diluted earnings per share {cents) 2.85 473

The Group has used the ordinary shares of the prior Tower Limited up to 30 September 2020, and of the
Company from that date, for the purposes of caiculating the weighted average number of ordinary shares. The
prior Tower Limited issued an additional 84,322,958 shares as per its 1 for 4 rights offer {refer to Note 5.2). The
shares were issued at NZ5$0.56 which represented a 19% discount to the share price of NZ$0.69 as at 15 October
2019 (the date immediately prior to the exercise of rights). As a result, 13,118,388 shares issued as part of the
rights offer are treated as a bonus issue. The weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue in both 2020
and 2019 have been adjusted in accordance with NZ 1AS 33 Eornings per share .
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6 Other balance sheet items

This section provides information about assets and liabilities not included elsewhere.

6.1 Property, plant and egquipment

Composition:
30 September 2020
S thousands Land and buildings Office eqm?un:::;rgé Motor vehicles eiiri];:gii Total
Composition:
Cost 4,035 8,599 1,748 15,622 30,004
Accumulated depreciation - (5,610) (665) {13,688} {19,963}
Property, plant and equipment 4,035 2,989 1,083 1,934 10,041
Reconciliation:
Opening balance 4,082 4,002 205 815 9,104
Depreciation . (1,048) (205) {751} (2,004)
Additions - 31 1,231 2,004 3,246
Revaluations 41 - . - 41
Disposals - 21 (125) {130} (234)
Foreign exchange movements (88) (17) (3) (4) (112)
Closing Balance 4,035 2,989 1,083 1,934 10,041
30 September 2019
Composition:
Cost 4,082 9,257 1,157 13,640 28,136
Accumulated depreciation . {5,255} (952) (12,825) {19,032}
Property, plant and equipment 4,082 4,002 205 815 9,104
Reconciliation:
Opening balance 3,404 4,438 239 429 8,510
Depreciation - {1,018) {112) {461) {1,591)
Additions 337 562 97 862 1,858
Revaluatians 305 - - - 305
Disposals - (3) (4) (1) (3)
Foreign exchange movements 36 23 (15) (14} 30
Closing 8alance 4,082 4,002 205 815 9,104
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6.1 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Recognition and measurament

Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost including transaction costs and subsequentiy measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the asset's cost or revalued amounts, net of any residual
amaunts, over their usefu! lives, The assets’ useful lives are reviewad and adjusted if appropriate at each balance date. An asset's
carrying amount is written down immediately tc its recoverable amount if it is considered that the carrying amount is greater than
its recoverable amount,

Furniture & fittings 5-8 years
Leasehold property improvements 3-12 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years

Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based on pericdic valuations by external independent appraisers less subsequent
depreciation for budidings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
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6.2 Intangible assets

a. Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

30 Septembhber 2020

Cust
S thousands Goodwill Software -ustomer Total
Relationships*

Compaosition:

Cost 17,744 98,351 14,222 130,317
Accumulated amortisation - (43,379) {1,984} {45,363}
Intangible Assets 17,744 54,972 12,238 84,954

Reconciliation:

Opening balance 17,744 56,467 - 74,211
Amortisation - (8,866) {1,984) {10,850}
Additions - 7,534 14,222 21,756
Disposals “ (43) - {43}
Transfers - {120} - (120}
Closing Balance i7,744 54,972 12,238 84,954

30 September 2019

Composition:

Cost 17,744 90,981 - 108,725

Accumulated amortisation - (34,514} - {34,514}
Intangible Assets 17,744 56,467 - 74,211

Reconciliation:

Opening halance 17,744 27,298 - 45,042
Amortisation - (6,527} . (6,527)
Additions - 36,343 - 36,343
Disposals - - -

Transfers - (647} - (647)
Closing Balance 17,744 56,467 - 74,211

*Tower purchased Youi NZ Pty Ltd.'s insurance portfolic in December 2019. The transaction is treated as an
intangible asset as Tower purchased the customer relationships {and associated assets and liabilities) and not
Youi NZ's business systems or processes. The amount capitalised includes the price paid for the portfolio and
associated acquisition costs.

:
ot
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6.2a Amounts recognised in the balance sheet {continued)

Recognition and measurament

Inténgible assets are assets without physical substance. They are recognised as an asset if it is probable that expected future
economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to Tower and that costs can be measured reliabty.

Application software and customer relationships are recerded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Application software is amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the software. Customer
relationships are amortised over the estimated useful life in accordance with the pattern of economic benefit consumption.

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded &t cost which comprise all directly attributable costs necessary to create,
produce and prepare the asset to he capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Amortisation of internally
generated intangible assets begins when the asset is available for use and is amortised on a straight fine basis over the
estimated useful life.

The useful lives for each category of intangible assets with 2 finite life are as follows:
- capitalised software: 3-5 years for general use computer software and 3-10 years for core operating system software
- custemer relationships: 10 years

Goodwill (i.e. assets with an indefinite useful life) generated as a result of business acquisition is initially measured as the

excess of the purchase consideration aver the fair value of the net identifiable assets and Habilities acquired. Goodwili is not
subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment annually or more frequently where there are indicators of impairment.

b. Impairment testing

An impairment charge is recognised in profit or loss when the carrying value of the asset, or cash-generating unit
(CGU), exceeds the calcuiated recoverable amount.

{i} Software and customer relationships

Software and custormer relationships are reviewed at each reporting date by determining whether there is an
indication that the carrying values may be impaired. If an indication exists, the asset is tested for impairment. A
loss is recognised for the ameunt by which the carrying value exceeds the asset’s recoverable value.

There were no indications of impairment during the year and therefere these assets were not tested for
impairment {2019: no indications).

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The recoverable amount for software and customer relationships has been determined by reference to a value in use
calculation based on {i} cash flow forecasts that combine past experience with future expectations based on prevailing and
anticipated market factors; and (ii} a discount rate that appropriately reflects the time value of money and the specific risks
associated with the assets.

Value-in-use calculations involve the use of accounting estimates and assumptions to determine the projected net cash flows,
which are discounted using an appropriate discount rate to reflect current market assessment of the risks associated with the
assets. An impairment charge for capitalised software i§ incurred where there is evidence that the economic performance of
the asset is not as intended by management. Customer relationships represent the present value of future benefits expected
to arise from existing customer refationships. The assurnptions for the useful life are based on histerical information.
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6.2b impairment testing (continued)

(it} Goodwill

Goodwill is deemed to have an indefinite useful iife and is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
where there is an indication that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Geodwill is allocated to cash generating units {CGUs) expected from synergies arising from the acquisition giving
rise to goodwill. Tower's goodwill is allocated to the general insurance CGY,

Tower undertook an annual impairment review and no ioss has been recognised in 2020 as a result (2019: nil).
COVID-19 impacts were taken into account when performing the review,

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The recoverable amount of the general insurance business is assessed with reference to its appraisal value, which is a
common practice for insurance comganies. A base discount rate of 20.5% was used in the calculation (2019: 12.5%). The
cash flows are in line with the FY21 - FY23 operationai plan (2019: FY20 - FY22) and longer term profitability is assumed to
continue at 2% per annum. The projected cash flows are determined based on past performance and management's
expectations for market developments with a terminal growth rate of 2% {2019: 2%).

The overall valuation is sensitive to a range of assumptions including the forecast combined operating ratio used in terminal
value calculation, discount rate, and terminal value long-term growth rate. Reasanable changes to these assumptions will
not result in an impairment.
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6.3 Leases

a. Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet

(i) Right of use assets

S thousands Office space Meotor vehicles 2020
Caompaosition:

Cast 9,619 53 9,672
Accumulated depreciation (2,430) (31) (2,461}
Right of use assets 7,189 22 7,211
Reconciliation:

Opening balance 10,097 86 10,183
Degreciation (2,518) (68} (2,586)
Additions 961 4 965
Disposals {1,249) - (1,249)
Revaluations (96) - {a6)
Impairment (27} - (2n
Net foreign exchange movements 21 - 21
Right of use assets 7,189 22 7,211

Recognition and measurement

Right-of-use assets are recognised when Tower has the right to use the assets. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencernent date less any lease incentives received; and indirect costs; and restoration costs. Right-of-use assets are
generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight line basis.

47

TR

pwe



Tower Limited

6.3a Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet {continued)

{ii) Lease liabilities

S thousands 2020
Compoaosition:

Current 2,721
Non-current 5,874
Lease liabilities 8,695
Due within 1 year 2,721
Due within 1 to 2 years 2,584
Due within 2 to 5 years 3,534
Due after 5 years 418
Discount (562)
Lease liabilities 8,695

Recognition and measuwrement

Lease liabilities are recognised at the date Tower has the right te use the corresponding asset. Lease liabilities are initially
measured as the present value of expected lease payments under lease arrangements. Lease liability witl inciude any apticn to
extend where it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. The lease payments are discounted using the incremental
borrowing rate as the interest rate in the lease cannot be readily determined. Inczemental berrowing rates used during the year
ranged between 2.3% and 3.6%.

Subsequent repayments are split between principal and interest cost where the finance cost represents the time value of money
and is chargad to the profit or loss over the lease period. The discount rate applied is unchanged from the applied at the initial
recognition of the lease, unless there are material changes to the lease,

b. Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

S thousands Classification 2020
Depreciation and impaifme_nt Underwr_iting expé_n_se & corporate and other expenses {2,598)
Interest expense _ Finance costs R ' . _ {369)
Gain on _dispos'a.l ' Underwri_tiné expense : 167
Lease expense E Lo : : (2,800)

c. Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of cash flows

S thousands 2020

Total cash outflow for lease principal paymeh_ts IR C I (3,070)
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7 Tax

This section provides information on Tower's tax expense during the year and its position at balance date.

7.1 Tax expense

Campaosition

S thousands 2020 2019
Current tax 3,621 2,757
Deferred tax 4,340 6,407
Adjustments in respect of prior years (51) 26
Tax expense 7,910 9,190

Reconciliation of prima facle tax to income tax expense

S thousands 2020 2019
Net profit before tax 20,251 25,995
Prima facie tax expense at 28% (2019: 28%) 5,670 7,279
Adjustments in respect of prior years {51) 26
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 788 (522)
Foreign tax credits written off 1,127 2,149
Other 376 258
Tax expense ... 7,910 9,190

Recognition and measurament

Tax expense is calculated on the basis of the apglicable tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period in the jurisdictions Tower operates in. There have been no tax rate changes during the year in these
jurisdictions. Current tax expense refates to tax payable for the current financiat reporting pericd while deferred tax will be
payable in future periods.

7.2 Current tax !

a. Current tax asset

S thousands 2020 2019
Excess tax payments related to prior periods* . 12,038 12,038
Excess tax payments/tax payable related to current period** 854 1,551
Current tax assets 12,892 13,588

*Expected to be recovered from 2022 as per the Board approved operational plan for 2021 to 2024,
** Excess tax payment made in the Pacific Islands during the reporting period.
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7.2 Current tax (continued)

h. Current tax liability

The current tax liability balance of $821k {2019: $229k) relates to taxes payable to offshore tax authorities in the

Pacific tslands.

Recognition and measurement

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Overpayment of tax in the current and prior periods is recognised as a current tax asset, Current tax assets are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted

7.3 Deferred tax

a. Deferred tax asset

Campaosition

S thousands 2020 2019
Tax losses recognised 25,720 24,527
Property, plant and equipment 3,304 7,684
Provisions and accruals 3,882 4,149
Recognised in profit or [oss 32,906 36,360
Right of use impact 501 -
Recognised in comprehensive profit or loss 33,407 36,360
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to NZ JAS 12 (6,575) {6,052}
Deferred tax asset " '26,832 30,308
Reconciliation of movements

S thousands 2020 2019
Opening balance 36,360 42,115
IFRS 16 adoption 501 -
Movements recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income {3,454) (5,755)
Deferred tax asset pre NZ |AS 12 set off 33,407 36,360
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7.3 Deferred tax (continued)

b. Deferred tax liability

Composition

S thousands 2020 2019
Deferred acquisition costs (6,588) {6,045)
Other* (911) (560)
Recognised in profit or loss {7,499} (6,605)
Asset revaluation (422) (438)
Recognised in comprehensive profit or loss {7,921) {7,043)
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to NZ 1AS 12 6,575 6,052
Deferred tax liability {1,346} {991}
* Primarily relates to withholding tax on undistributed profit from the Pacific Islands.

Reconciliation of movements

S thousands 2020 2013
Opening balance (7,043) (6,328)
Movements recagnised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income (886) (683)
Movements recognised in equity 8 (32)
Deferred tax liability pre NZ 1AS 12 set off {7,921} {7,043)
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7.4 Imputation credits

The Group imputation credit account reflects the imputation credits held by the Company as the representative
member of the Group.

S thousands 2020 2019

Imputation credits available for use in subsequent reporting periods 271 271

Recognition and measuremant

Deferred tax is income tax which is expected to be payable or recoverable in the future as a result of the unwinding of
temporary differences. These arise from differences in the recognition of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and from
the filing of income tax returns. Deferred tax is recognised cn all temporary differences, other than those arising from (i}
goodwill or (i) frem the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction {other than in a business combination) that
affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

At the reporting date, the Group has recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of its unused tax losses of 592.2m (2019:
$87.6m).

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
cursent tax Habiities and when thay relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends teo
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised based on the likely timing and quantum of future taxable profits.

This assessment Is-.cempleted on the basis of the approved strategic plans of Tower Limited and subsidiaries. - If future profits -

‘do not eccur as expected, or there is a significant change in ownership, Tower may not be able to utilise all 'of these tax iosses.
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8 Other information

This section includes additional disclosures which are required by financial reporting standards.

8.1 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Composition

S thousands 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-1%
Cash at hank 61,892 34,563
Deposits at cail 18,071 26,428
Restricted cash 145 1,027
Cash and cash equivalents 80,108 62,018

The average interest rate at 30 September 2020 for deposits at call is 0.47% (2019: 1.44%).

Recanciliation of profit for the year to cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 12,341 16,805

Adjusted for non-cash items

Depreciation of preperty, plant and equipment 2,004 1,598
Depreciation, impairment and disposals of right-of-use assets 2,432 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 10,850 6,573
Fair vatue losses on financial assets 1,518 622
Change in deferred tax _ 6,439
Adjusted for movements in working capital

Change in receivables {2,659) {2,012)
Change in payabies {15,313) {6,061)
Change in taxation (1,414) 297
Adjusted for financing activities

Facility fees émd interest paid 1,315 352
Net cash inflows from operating activities 18,8?9 241612
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8.2 Entity amalgamation

8.3

The financial statements presented are the consolidated financial statements comprising Tower Limited
previously Tower Insurance Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries {together, Tower, or the Group).

On 30 Septermber 2020, Tower Insurance Limited was amalgamated by way of a short form amalgamation under
the Companies Act 1993 with its ultimate parent, Tower Limited {the prior Tower Limited); its parent, Tower
financial Services Group Limited; and another subsidiary of Tower Limited, Tower New Zealand Limited. Tower
insurance Limited has continued as the amalgamated company, and changed its name to Tower Limited as part
of the amalgamation.

As a result of the amalgamation, all of Tower Limited's subsidiaries and operations which were previously sitting
outside of Tower Insurance Limited were brought into the Group.

The Company and Group have accounted for the amaigamation using the predecessor value method, which
they have applied retrospectively. Consequently, unless otherwise stated the comparatives presented are for
what was, in the prior year, the Tower Limited consclidated group, except for eguity and reserves, which are of
Tower Insurance Limited.

Related party disclosures

Tower considers key management personnel to consist of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
executive leadership team. Information regarding individuatl director and executive compensation is provided in
the Carporate Governance section of the annual report.

S thousands 30-Sep-20 30-Sep-19

Salaries and other short term employee benefits paid 4,736 5,720
Independent director fees 624 584
Related party remuneration 5,360 6,304

Tower insurance products are available to all key management personnel on the same terms as available to
other employeas. In addition, Tower purchases indemnity insurance for all directors both past and present
covering liabilities and legal expenseas incurred whilst in office.

Defnition

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

|
!
|
4
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8.4 Auditor's remuneration

5 thousands 30-5ep-20 30-Sep-19
Audit of financial statements ™ 550 528
Other assurance services ™ 46 46
Nan-assurance agreed procedures @ 12 12
Total fees paid to Group's auditors 608 586
Fees paid to subsidiaries' auditors different to Group auditors:

Audit of financial statements ¥ 15 14
Auditors remuneration 623 600

W audit of financial statements includes fees for bhoth the audit of annual financial statements and the review of
the interim financial staterents. This also includes the fees for the audits of subsidiaries. PwC Fiji and PwC PNG
provide audit opinions on the financial statements of Tower Insurance (Fiji} Limited and Tower Insurance (PNG}

Limited, where the majority of the wark is performed by the group auditor.

) Qther assurance services includes annual solvency return assurance and Pacific Island reguiatory return audits,

8 Agreed procedures on Pacific Island regulatory return and Annual Shareholders' Meeting procedures.

@ The audit of Tower Insurance {Vanuatu) Limited was performed by Law Partners (2019: Law Partners).

8.5 Contingent liabilities

The Group is occasionally subject to claims and disputes as a commerciai outcome of conducting insurance
business. Provisions are recorded for these claims or disputes when it is probable that an cutflow of resources will
be required to settle any obligations. Best estimates are included within claims reserves for any litigation that has

arisen in the usual course of business.

The Group has no other contingent liabilities.

8.6 Subsequent events

EQC Receivable {adjusting event)

On 24 November 2020 Tower Limited entered into a commaercial agreement with EQC, for a settlement value of

$53.6m relating to the EQC receivable.

The commercial settlement agreement provides Tower Limited evidence of the £QC receivable’s recoverable value
as at the end of the reparting period, and therefore Tower Limited has adjusted the amounts recognised in the

FY20 financial statements, along with updating the relevant disclosu

commercial settiement agreement.

res in the financial statements to reflect the

The adjustment for the EQC receivable’s recoverable value for the co; mercial settlement agreement is grimarily
reflected as an impairment expense within the Statement of comprehensive income, and a reduction to the EQC
receivable’s carrying value on the Balance sheet. Tower holds an associated reinsurance payable, which is directly
related to the amount of EQC costs recovered. The reinsurance payable has been adjusted to reflect the decrease

in reinsurance payable as a result of the settlement agreement.

The result of the commercial settlement is a reduction in net profit after tax to Tower of $9.5m.

Large events (non-adjusting event)

Tower limited have had two large events subseguent to the balance date: (i) Lake Ohau fires ($6.0m provided};
and Napier floods ($3.0m - $4.0m preliminary estimate). The impacts of both events will be reflected in FY21

reporting.
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8.7 Capital commitments

8.8

As at 30 September 2020, Tower has capital commitments of $0.4m (2019: $0.2m) related to the implementation and
delivery of a new ERP system, $0.1m {2019: $0.1m} relating to a new automated reinsurance system, and $0.2m
{2019: nil} relating to general use computer software. Total capital commitments for 2020 are 50.7m (2019: 51.7m}.

Impact of new accounting standards

. Issued and effective

Context

The Group adepted NZ §FRS 16 Leoses during the period. NZ IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of ieases. The standard replaced the guidance in NZ IAS17 Leases,
and was effective from 1 October 2019 for Tower.

NZ IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability reflecting future
lease payments for most lease contracts. The standard allows exemptions far short-term leases (less than 12
months) and for leases on low value assets. The main impact of the new standard was on leases which were
previously classified as operating leases, being predominantly office building and motor vehicle related leases.

Accounting policy change

As a result of the adoption of NZ IFRS 16, Tower has recognised depreciation expense on right-of-use assets, on

a straight line basis over the lease term, and interest expense on lease liabilities.

Tower applied the standard using the modified retrospective approach. The cumulative effect of adopting NZ

[FRS 16 was recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings on October 1 2019, with

no restatement of comparative information.

The modified retrospective approach allows entities 1o use a number of practical expedients on adoption of the

new standard, of which Tower elected to use the following:

{iy  Notto apply NZ IFRS 16 for short-term leases

(i}  apply a single discount rate to the portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics,

{iif)  use hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate a
lease; and :

{iv) rely on an assessment of whether leases are onerous under |AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets immaediately before the date of initial application.

Impact of accounting policy change

The impact of the adoption of NZ iFRS 16 Tower’s balance sheet as at 1 Octoher 2019 is shown in the table
below. ThTe was also an immaterial impact an the pattern of expense recognition.

S thousands ! 2020
Right-of-use assets 10,183
Lease liabitities {11,982)
Deferred tax asset © 462
Retained earnings {1,337}
ek
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8.8

tmpact of new accounting standards {continued)

Tower's weighted average incremental barrowing rate at the transition date was 3.60%.

The table below presents a reconciliation of the operating lease commitments as disclosed in the Group's
30 September 2019 financial statements, to the lease liability recognised on transition date:

5 thousands 2020
Operating lease commitment - 30 September 2019 9,802
Impact of reassessment of lease terms under NZ IFRS 16 3,281
Impact of discount.ing future lease payments at the weighted average (997)
incremental borrowing rate

Other (including short-term leases not recognised as a lease liability) (104)
Lease liabifity recognised on transition date - 1 October 2019 11,982

Issued and not yet effective

NZ IFRS 17 insurance Contracts is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 {subject to
approval of proposed cne year delay). Tower will apply the standard for the year ending 30 September
2024. The standard replaces the current guidance in NZ IFRS 4 insurance Contracts, and establishes the
principies for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts, Tower has
started a programme with dedicated resource to assess the impact of adopting NZ [FRS 17 and to project
manage the transition to the new standard. it is expected that the majority of Tower's insurance
coniracts will meet the requirements of the simplified approach. However, there are expected to be
significant changes in the presentation of the financial standards and disclosures. Due to the complexity
of the requirements within the standard the final impact may not be determined until global
interpretations and regutatory respenses to the new standard are developed.

8.9 Change in comparatives

Tower has reclassified certain items from prior year’s financial statements to conform to the current
year's presentation basis. The key changes are listed below.

a. Consolidated statement of comprehensive income - presentation changes

The Income statement §r1d statement of comprehensive income have been merged into a combined
consolidated statemeny of comprehensive income to simplify financial performance presentation. [n
addition, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been redesigned to disclose thé
underwriting result for the reporting period. This has resulted in some classification changes. There was
no impact to 2019 profit as a result of these changes.
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8.9 Change in comparatives (continued)

b. Consclidated statement of cash flows - presentation changes

A number of changes have been made to the presentation of the conselidated statement of cash flows.
First, cash flows related to the sale and purchase of interest bearing investments are now shown on a
gross basis (previcusly it was disclosed on a net basis}. Second, cash flows from the purchase of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment are shown separately {previously combined)}. Third, cash
received from non-reinsurance recoveries have been included with reinsurance recoveries received as
opposed to being netted off in claims paid - as a result, claims paid and reinsurance and other recoveries
have both increased by $7.1m in 2019, Finally, net realised investment gains was moved from operating
activities cash flows {reducing by $42,000 in 2019) to investment cash flows (increasing by 542,000 in
2019).

¢. Consolidated balance sheet - presentation changes

Deferred outwards reinsurance costs have been combined with deferred acquisition costs to show a
combined deferred insurance cost. Previously, deferred reinsurance costs were grouped with receivables
{which reduced by 58.8m in 2019 to reflect the change in classification).

d. Credit risk {note 4.4) Investment and Treasury credit ratings - Reclassification

Some cash and investments balances in 2019's credit expasure by credit rating table were incorrectly
classified and have been reclassified in the current year. The reclassification has resulted in a $0.1m
decrease in balances categorised under "AA" credit rating, $17.0m decrease in balances categorised under
“A" credit rating, $0.3m decrease in balances categorised under "Below BBB" credit rating and $17.4m
increase in balances categorised under "Not rated”. The net impact resulting from these reclassifications
is nil.

°

Consolidated balance sheet - Reclassification between cash and cash equivalents and investments

Within the consolidated balance sheet, $5.0m of term deposits with maturity dates greater than 3 months
from the date of acquisition have heen reclassified from cash and cash equivalents to investments per NZ
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows .

Changes for interaal consistency have also been made te the consclidated cash flow statement, Note 3.2
Investments, Note 3.3 Fair value hierarchy, Note 4.4(a) Investment and treasury credit risk, Note 4.5{b}
Market risk - interest risk, Note 4.6 Liquidity risk and Note 8.1 Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Tower Limited

We have audited the consolidated financial statements which comprise:
e the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September 2020;
e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tower Limited (the Company),
including its subsidiaries (the Group), present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group as at 30 September 2020, its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(NZ IFRS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
(NZ)) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1
International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (including International Independence
Standards) (New Zealand) (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board and the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA
Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Our firm carries out other services for the Group. These services are assurance services in respect of
solvency and regulatory insurance returns and agreed upon procedures in respect of voting at the
Annual Shareholders Meeting and a regulatory insurance return. In addition, certain partners and
employees of our firm may deal with the Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading
activities of the Group. These matters have not impaired our independence as auditor of the Group.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 15 Customs Street West, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 9 355 8000, F: +64 9 355 8001, pwc.co.nz
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Description of the key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

(1) Valuation of outstanding claims
(2020: $107,747,000, 2019: $124,060,000)

We considered the valuation of outstanding
claims a key audit matter because this involves
an estimation process combined with

Claims data is a key input to the actuarial
estimates. Accordingly, we:

e evaluated the design effectiveness and
significant judgements and assumptions made tested controls over claims processing;
by management to estimate future claims cash e assessed a sample of claim case estimates
outflows. at the year end to check that they were
The outstanding claims liability includes a supported by appropriate management
central estimate of the future cash outflows assessment and documenfcahon;
relating to claims incurred, as at and prior to b assesseq ona sample ba51s.the accuracy of
the reporting date, and the expected costs of the previous claim case estimates by
handling those claims. There is uncertainty comparing to the actual amount settled
over the amount that reported claims and during 'the year and .analysed any
claims incurred at the reporting date but not escalation in the claim case estimate to
yet reported to the Group will ultimately be determine whgther such escale}tlon was
settled at. The estimation process relies on the base;d on new information available
quality of underlying claims data and the use during the year;
of informed estimates to determine the o inspected a sample of claims paid during
quantum of the ultimate loss. the year to confirm that they were

supported by appropriate documentation
Key actuarial assumptions applied in the and approved within delegated authority
valuation of outstanding claims (excluding limits; and
Canterbury earthquakes) include: e tested the integrity of data used in the

e expected future claims development
proportion; and
e claims handling expense ratios.

Outstanding claims in relation to the
Canterbury earthquakes have a greater degree

actuarial models by agreeing the relevant
model inputs, such as claims data, to
source.

Together with our actuarial experts, we:

: . . . e considered the work and findings of the
of uncertainty and judgement. This mainly .
. .. actuaries engaged by the Group;
arises due to the Earthquake Commission .
. . e evaluated the actuarial models and

(EQC) reporting new claims to the Group .

: methodologies used, and any changes to
which have gone over the $100,000 statutory . .

- . N them, by comparing with generally

liability cap (over cap claims), new litigation :

. . . accepted models and methodologies
claims, reopening of closed claims, expected .

. . . applied in the sector;
claims costs for open claims and estimates of o

. e assessed key actuarial judgements and
future claims management expenses. .
assumptions and challenged them by
Changes in assumptions can lead to significant comparing with our expectations based
movements in the outstanding claims. on the Group’s experience, our own sector
The outstanding claims liability includes a risk knowledge and 1ndependent'1y observat?le
. . . industry trends (where applicable), taking
margin that allows for the inherent uncertainty . . . .
. . . into consideration COVID-19 impacts;
in the central estimate of future claim cash . . .
e assessed the risk margin, by comparing

outflows. In determining the risk margin, the
Group makes judgements about the volatility
of each class of business written and the
correlation between each division and between

known industry practices. In particular
we focused on the assessed level of
uncertainty in the central estimate; and



different geographical locations. The Directors
include an additional $5 million risk margin in
respect of the Christchurch earthquake claims.

Relevant references in the consolidated financial
statements.

Refer to note 2.4, which also describes the
elements that make up this balance.

considered the Directors’ $5 million
Christchurch earthquake additional risk
margin with reference to the inherent
uncertainty in the remaining
Christchurch earthquake claims and its
consistency with prior periods.

(2) Valuation of EQC recovery receivable
related to the Canterbury earthquakes

(2020: $52,883,000, 2019: $69,900,000)

The EQC recovery receivable relates to
amounts paid by the Group for land and
building damage arising from the Canterbury
earthquake events in respect of EQC’s
statutory liability under the Earthquake
Commission Act 1993. The EQC and the Group
were in disagreement on the quantum of
damage paid by the Group on EQC’s behalf
with the Group having commenced litigation
in respect of this matter.

We considered the valuation of the EQC
recovery receivable to be a key audit matter
because significant management judgement
was required to estimate the expected
recoveries from the EQC in respect of land and
building damage.

However, on 24 November 2020, the Group
and the EQC agreed to settle all amounts
outstanding for $53,600,000 (excluding GST)
resulting in the Group impairing the previously
recorded receivable and reducing the amounts
payable to reinsurers by $13,126,000 (before
tax). The settlement, being agreed after the
end of the financial reporting period, but
before the financial statements were
authorised for issue, provides evidence of
conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period and therefore is an adjusting
event under the accounting standards. The
financial statements have been adjusted to
reflect the agreed settlement.

Relevant references in the consolidated financial
Statements

Refer to note 2.7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

We understood how the Group had determined
their initial estimate of the receivable at 30
September 2020 by:

reviewing reports of the experts engaged
by the Group and holding discussions
with them to understand the legal and
technical arguments and judgements
considered in the estimation of the
receivable;

testing on a sample basis the claims detail
used in the experts’ calculations to the
Group’s claim records and with the data
used in previous years to estimate the
receivable; and

holding discussions with management
and the Directors to understand the
progress of the litigation and of any
discussions with the EQC about possible
settlement.

Following the agreement of a settlement on 24
November 2020 between the Group and the EQC,
we reviewed the signed settlement agreement,
confirmed this was an adjusting event as defined
in the accounting standards and ensured the
financial statements appropriately reflected the
settlement agreed, including the disclosure

thereof.

PwC
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(3) Recoverability of the deferred tax asset
arising from tax losses

(2020: $25,720,000 2019: $24,527,000)

The majority of the Group’s deferred tax asset
arises from tax losses. We considered
recoverability of the deferred tax asset a key
audit matter because utilisation of the asset is
sensitive to the Group’s expected future
profitability and sufficient continuity of the
ultimate shareholders.

Management judgement is involved in
forecasting the timing and quantum of future
taxable profits, which are inherently uncertain,
and whether it is probable the tax losses will be
utilised in the foreseeable future.

Relevant reference in the consolidated financial
Statements

Refer to note 7.3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Together with our tax experts, we:

understood the progress made by
management in improving the
profitability of the business in recent
periods;

compared the previous management
budget with actual results to assess the
reliability of management’s forecasts;
considered the reasonableness of the
assumptions in the FY21 operational plan
on the forecast utilisation of tax losses;
and

assessed the Group’s ability to maintain
sufficient continuity of the ultimate
shareholders and its entitlement to offset
the tax losses against future taxable
profits.

Our audit approach

Overview

An audit is designed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Overall Group materiality: $3.7 million, which represents approximately

We chose gross earned premium as the benchmark because, in our view, it
is a key financial statement metric used in assessing the performance of

the Group and is a generally accepted benchmark for insurance
companies. The 1% is based on our professional judgement, noting that it

is also within the range of commonly accepted revenue related thresholds.

As reported above, we have three key audit matters, being:

Materiality 1% of gross earned premium.
Audit
scope
Key audit
matters °

Valuation of outstanding claims

e Valuation of EQC recovery receivable related to the Canterbury

earthquakes

e Recoverability of the deferred tax asset arising from tax losses.

PwC
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Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out
above. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit,
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Audit scope

We designed our audit by assessing the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial
statements and our application of materiality. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls including among other matters, consideration of whether
there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Our Group audit mostly focused on the Company, which contributes approximately 84% of the
Group’s gross earned premium. We performed audit procedures over material balances and
transactions of the non-significant subsidiaries and the consolidation of the Group’s subsidiaries.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report
The Directors are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. At the time of our audit, there
was no other information available to us.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, if other information is included
in the annual report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible, on behalf of the Company, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements, as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) and ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements is
located at the External Reporting Board’s website at:
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-
report-1/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Who we report to

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholders, as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholders, as a body, for our
audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Karen Shires.

For and on behalf of:

fliousklvue lrpot—

Chartered Accountants Auckland
25 November 2020
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24 November 2020

The Directors
Tower Limited

Dear Directors

tuarial Information contained in the financial

As required by Section 78 of IPSA the Appointed Actuary, Geoff Atkins of Finity Consulting, has
reviewed the actuarial information contained in, or used in the preparation of, the financial
statements at 30 September 2020. Geoff Atkins and Finity have no relationship with or interest in
Tower other than being a provider of actuarial services.

| prepared the actuarial valuation of liabilities remaining from the Canterbury Earthquakes and
reviewed the actuarial valuations of insurance liabilities for the New Zealand business and the
Pacific Islands businesses. | reviewed the other actuarial information as specified by IPSA in
Section 77, including the solvency calculations for the financial statements. The EQC recovery
receivable related to the Canterbury Earthquakes does not form part of the actuarial information at
the balance date; the valuation of this asset is the responsibility of the Board.

No limitations were placed on me in performing the review and all data and information requested
was provided.

Nothing has come to my attention that would lead me to believe that any of the actuarial
information contained in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements is not appropriate.

In my opinion the company has maintained a solvency margin in excess of the minimum required
as at 30 September 2020.

The report is being provided for the sole use of Tower for the purpose state above. It is not
intended, nor necessarily suitable, for any other purpose and should only be relied on for the
purpose for which itis intended.

Yours sincerely \

Geoff Atkins Anagha Pasche
Appointed Actuary

Fellows of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries
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Chairman’s update

Continued growth and
momentum

Leading through
COVID-19

Strong and well capitalised

New CEO, Blair Turnbull,
joined Tower in August 2020

Underlying profit increased on
prior year

Results at top end of guidance,

supported by solid growth

Accelerated push into digital
and data

Dedicated team and support
programme in place to help
customers

$7.2m being refunded to customers
for lower claims due to COVID-19

Tower has demonstrated strong
resilience, navigating the challenges
of COVID-19 well

Pacific operations maintained full
service despite widespread
lockdowns

Strong capital position and solvency
margin

Settlement of EQC receivable removes
legacy issue and further improves capital
position

Removal of regulatory complexity
through amalgamation

Following updated RBNZ guidance to
the industry, Tower intends to resume
dividend payments in FY21, subject to
market conditions and consideration of
growth opportunities

| TOWER






A journey of
continued focus
and streamlini




Delivering consistent growth

UNDERLYING NPAT
excl. large events

$34.7m

+ 23% on prior year

COMBINED RATIO

88.5%

In line with prior year

UNDERLYING NPAT
incl. large events

$28.4m

+ 3% on prior year

REPORTED PROFIT

$12.3m

Impacted by EQC receivable

in profitability

$21.4m

$13.6m

FY18

FY18
-$6.7m

Underlying NPAT

$28.3m

FY19

m Underlying NPAT ($m) Large events

Reported profit

$16.8m

FY19

$34.7m

$28.4m

FY20

———————————

EQC

Fy20

| TOWER



Strong growth in customers and premium

CUSTOMERS UNDERLYING GROUP GWP

300,000 $385m

+ 8% on prior year

+11% on prior year
Includes Youi NZ $12m GWP

NZ MARKET SHARE CUSTOMERS ON MyTower
9.1% 50,000
] o ¥y
Up from 8.3% in prior year October 2020

Refer to reconciliation between underlying and reported GWP on page 33

GWP growth by business unit ($m)

$385
$357 459
336
$ $60
58
$110
$107
$104
$174 520 s2i6
FY18 FY19 FY20

Direct ®Partnerships ®Pacific

Tower NZ Personal Lines Market Share
9.1%

8.3%

79% 8.0%

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

| TOWER



Disciplined claims management improved through digitisation

CLAIMS RATIO EXCL. CLAIMS LODGED ONLINE IN Clai ti LL t
LARGE EVENTS SEPTEMBER 2020 alms ratio excl. large events
52%
o o
O (o) 48%
46%
2% better than prior year 27% in September 2019
AVG. MOTOR CLAIM SIMPLE HOUSE CLAIMS
COST
1,600 207
7 o
FY18 FY19 FY20
+ 6% on prior year Straight to builder in FY20

| TOWER



Product, pricing and underwriting enhanced through data

BALANCED PRODUCT MIX

437%

Of NZ risk portfolio is motor

CORE PRODUCTS

12

All in plain language

RISKS INSURED

632,000

Average of 2 risks per
customer

PACIFIC PRODUCT VARIANTS
ON SALE REDUCED BY

30%

GWP Product Mix ($m)

$11

$19

$139

$182 $194 2208

$28 $28 $30

FY18 FY19 FY20
Commercial Home & contents ® Motor Other

| TOWER
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MER improving while continuing to invest and simplify

TOWER MANAGEMENT
EXPENSE RATIO

39%

1% better than prior year

ACQUISITION COSTS

13%

2% lower than prior year

MANAGEMENT EXPENSE
RATIO

347%

In Tower Direct

TOWER PEOPLE

601

FY20 Management Expense Ratios

51%
45%
39%
34%

Direct Partnerships Pacific Tower Group

Tower people

634 659

601

FY18 FY19 FY20

| TOWER
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Investing in digital platform for efficiency and scalability

TECHNOLOGY RELEASES
IN FY20

117

2.4 x more than prior year

WORKLOADS MOVED TO
THE CLOUD

70%

Since January 2019

CUSTOMERS MIGRATED
TO EIS

907%

Tower Direct

CORE ADMIN LEGACY
SYSTEMS DECOMISSIONED

4

6 remaining, 4 to be
decommissioned in FY21

Technology system releases per year

117

47

19

FY18 FY19 FY20

« Foundational partnerships in place with
EIS, Ushur, CorelLogic, Microsoft

| TOWER



Strong capital and solvency position

TOWER LIMITED SOLVENCY
MARGIN (PARENT)

2877%"

$48m’” capital above regulatory
minimums

EQC RECEIVABLE SETTLED
$42.1m
After disbursement to reinsurers

12 "Excludes EQC receivable

FINANCIAL STRENGTH
RATING RECONFIRMED

A-

Following amalgamation

CHRISTCHURCH EQ CLAIMS

59

Open claims at 30 September

Open Canterbury Earthquake claims
163

109

59

FY18 FY19 FY20

Settlement of EQC receivable removes legacy
issue and further improves capital position

$15m BNZ credit line paid and closed

Tower intends to resume dividend payments in
FY21, subject to market conditions and
consideration of growth opportunities

| TOWER
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Managing through Covid-19, demonstrated resilience

REFUNDING CUSTOMERS

$7.2M

STAFF ON SAME DESKTOP
SYSTEMS

1007%

REMOTE WORKING
CAPABILITY

1007%

Staff able to work from home

KEY OPERATIONS CENTRES

3

Auckland, Rotorua, Suva

SUPPORTING OUR PEOPLE

- Agile working environment with digital
collaboration

- Ongoing wellbeing support

HELPING OUR CUSTOMERS

- Dedicated hardship team providing case-
by-case customer support

- MyTower to support online self-service

READY TO RESPOND

- New operating model enables flexible
workforce across three core offices

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION INSURANCE

- Tower policies only provide Business

Interruption in relation to physical events,
like fire, burglary or flood in the Pacific

| TOWER
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Group underlying financial performance

$ million FY20 FY19 Change ,
. . Reported NPAT of $12.3m, impacted by EQC

Gross written premium 385.1 356.8 284 settlement write off
Gross earned premium 3805 345.0 355
Reinsurance expense (572) (55.0) 22) . Unglerlying NPAT before large events of $34.7m is
Net claims expense (1497 (140.3) 9.4) . Improvement in key metrics of claims ratio
Large events claims expense (9.7) (13) (8.4) excluding large events and expense ratio
Management and sales expenses (126.6) (116.0) (10.6)
Underwriting profit 37.2 32.4 4.8 - Combined Ratio further improves to 88.5%
Investment and other revenue . , ,

. . 6.4 70 ©.7) $7.2m customer refund is included in net claims
Financing costs 1.1) (0.3) 0.8)

. . expense

Underlying profit before tax 42.4 39.1 3.4
Income tax expense 14.1) (11.6) (2.4)
Underlying profit after tax 28.4 27.4 0.9
EQC receivable write down (9.5) 00 (9.5) ey Y Pty Crenge
Canterbury impact 27) (6.0) 3.3 Claims ratio excluding large events 46.3% 48.4% 21%
Restructure costs (17) 0.0 (17) Claims ratio 49.3% 48.8% (05%)
Foreign tax credits write-off

. g C . 0.0 (16) 16 Expense ratio 39.2% 40.0% 0.8%
Simplification programme opex 0.8) (1.0) 02
Other non-underlying costs (1.4) 21) 07 Combined ratio 88.5% 88.8% 0.3%
Reported profit/(loss) after tax 12.3 16.8 (4.5)

15 ) TOWER

Refer to reconciliation between underlying and reported profit on page 33
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Movement in underlying profit

Net earned premium (NEP) higher due to Movement in underlying profit (NZ$m)
Youi acquisition, and growth in Tower Direct

and Tower Partnerships GWP o4 .
, , 333 &9
Large event claims well above prior year as 21
a result of weather events in NZ and Pacific o7
. . . . 141
While net claims expenses increased, it was
. . . 521
proportionally lower than the increase in 404 24
NEP than prior year 284
Increased technology expenses during
. . . . . FY19 Net earned Netclaims Investment Management Youi FY20 Large event FY20 Income Tax FY20
p[atform mlgratlon, IHC[Udlﬂg EIS and Youi Underlying premium  expense incomeless expenses amortisation Underlying — claims  Underlying Expense  Underlying
profit before (excllarge  financing profit before profit before profit after
amortisation expense taxexcluding events) costs taxexcluding tax tax
large events large events
] TOWER
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Tropical Cyclone Harold and the Timaru Hailstorm
resulted in FY20 large event claims increasing
$8.4m on the prior year to $9.7m

Provision for Lake Ohau fires of $6m in FY21

Preliminary estimates for Napier floods to result in
$3-%$4m impact on FY21 results

FY21 REINSURANCE RENEWAL

Increase in catastrophe cover from $783m to $812m

Pre-paid reinstatements in place to provide
additional protection

Catastrophe renewed on ‘risk adjusted’ flat pricing

$20m aggregate cover maintained at lower cost,
but higher excess of $14m

$800m reinsurance programme increases resilience

High-level reinsurance structure overview

teadag] Extended Cat
Coverto

$767m SELE U

Catastrophe

SR Prepaid rein-

(including Sueemeol

: $10m excess
earthquakes) ! s
To$767m i $767m Limit

Dropdown
i cover$45m
i (3rd eventonly)

$10m
Dropdown cover $2.5m
First $10m Cat (2~ and 3« eventsonly)
and $14m Agg
covered by Aggregate cover

Tower ($7.5m per event)

$14m $34m

Storm and other large event cover
(across multiple events)

| TOWER
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Continued focus on improving claims ratio

Change in claims ratio vs. prior year

0.6%

1.8% 3.2%
10% 045, 3.0%
L 12/ © o 4
FY19 claims ratio, Change in product Increase Motor Lower House Pacific BAU Other FY20 claims ratio, Large events FY20 claims ratio,
excluding large mix vs FY19 excluding large including large
events events events

Increase in mix of motor policies, relative to lower loss ratio e The FY20 seasonal impact of house fires is below previous

products, contributed an increase in the claims ratio. years.

Higher average cost of claims driven by increasing 0 $9.7m of large events were incurred in FY20 (vs $1.3m in
technological changes in vehicles as well as supply chain FY19). Timaru Hailstorm and Northland Floods totalling
pressures starting to be seen from COVID-19. $4.5m (net of reinsurance) in New Zealand, and Cyclone

Harold $5.2m (net of reinsurance) in Pacific.

| TOWER
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Continued discipline on management expenses

FY20 Management EXpense Ratio improved 1% on the Movement in management expenses (NZ$m)
prior year, down to 39%

FY20 management expenses of $126.6m include the

cost of running EIS in addition to existing systems L7 16

32
Tower Direct now almost fully on the digital platform,

with the lowest MER of the three businesses 74

Shift of Tower Partnerships and Tower Pacific to the
digital platform underway

Digital platform allows fast and efficient aggregation of
additional portfolios of business

Amortisation expense increased due to: (i) Youi
acquisition, (ii) implementation of the lease standard
IFRS16, and (iii) EIS digital platform

FY19 Amortisation  People Non-FTE Commission FY20

| TOWER



Over 15,000 Christchurch EQ claims now settled

Open Canterbury Earthquake Claims
The pace of new overcaps and reopened

claims slowed during the second half of
2020

Finalisation of claims also slowed during
the second half of 2020, impacted in part
by COVID-19 restrictions W

63
74

Settlement of EQC receivable

24
Tower to receive $42.1m after disbursement

to reinsurers

Write off of residual amount resulted in an

Open Closures  New/reopened Open Closures  New/reopened Open
impact of approximately $95m on NPAT properties 30 properties 30 properties at 30
September September September
2018 2019 2020

Removal of legacy issue a significant
milestone

| TOWER
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At 30 September 2020, Tower Limited
New Zealand had $98m of solvency
margin, $48m above the RBNZ licence
condition

Actual solvency capital of $150.4m is
equivalent to 287% of minimum
solvency capital

Tower's financial strength was
reconfirmed at A- (excellent) following
the amalgamation

BNZ loan to Tower Limited finalised on
amalgamation with Tower Insurance
Limited

Solid solvency position and simplified structure

ASC=155.9 45.0

53.0 ASC=150.4
13.0 155
493 481
TIL NZ as at 30 Capital raise Remove EQC from Purchase of Youi Other FY20 TLNZasat 30
September 2019 proceeds injected solvency solvency September 2020
into TIL calculations movements

mMSC mLicense condition Solvency margin

ASC = Actual solvency capital

| TOWER



Looking forward

Blair Turnbull, Chief Executive Officer
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A good result and an exciting future

Tower's results this year are good and at the
top end of expectations. We've achieved this
despite some unprecedented headwinds
and challenges.

As we start to move into a new era of Tower
though, the business will look and behave
differently.

To be clear, we don't just want to be a
smaller version of a big global insurer. That is
not the path we choose.

At Tower, we're choosing a direction that
leads to higher growth through a relentless
focus on our customers.

We're more determined than ever, more
energised than ever, and over the coming
months we'll be demonstrating that we're far
more dynamic than ever before.

| TOWER






Clear and focused strategic priorities

GROW AND INNOVATE BUILD FINANCIAL STRENGTH
AND CAPABILITY

.
\
ll P\

2 - A @ Gl

Relentless focus Leverage digital and Partner wherever Embracing agile Maintain a strong
on customer data everywhere possible and talent capital and solvency
relationships structure

25 | TOWER



26

Three focused businesses: Direct, Partnership & Pacific

TOWER DIRECT PARTNERSHIPS PACIFIC

- 180k customers - 8bk customers - 3bk customers
. $216m GWP - $110m GWP - $59m GWP

- 88% COR - 91% COR - 91% COR

- 34% MER - 45% MER - 51% MER

CLOUD-BASED DIGITAL AND DATA PLATFORM

TOWER GROUP

300k customers
$385m GWP
88.5% COR

39% MER

| TOWER
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- Growing our Direct business where we have

leading digital, data and innovative propositions

. 58% of new business online, service transactions

conducted online 30% of the time

Digital platform supports lower MER at 34%, which
will further improve as we scale

- Youi migration almost complete, proven model to

acquire additional books

- Automated campaigns and service notifications,

such as weather warnings and WOF notices

- $216m GWP, up 13% on prior year

Retention consistent at 82%

Growing our leading Tower Direct business

Tower Direct customers

180,000

150,000
141,000

FY18 FY19 FY20

Customer touchpoints

1628,000 1.684,000
1,523,000

1,076,000 1,139,000

865,000

FY18 FY19 FY20

EOnline = Calls

| TOWER
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Investing in Partnerships and the Pacific

Tower Partnerships well
positioned for growth

- New platform enables fast and scalable
partnership support

- TSB & Trade Me customer migration to
new cloud EIS platform well underway

- $110m GWP, up 3% on prior year

- Strong retention at 84%

Transforming Pacific business
while improving margins

- New tech platform key to providing a

sustainable Pacific business

- Fiji motor on new platform launching in Dec

2020

- Product rationalisation to reduce products

by 30% to 362 products

- Mitigating volatility by reducing

commercial exposure and focusing on
personal lines

. Pacific business contributes 15% of GWP

| TOWER



Investing in technology, innovation and a sustainable
environment

INNOVATIVE PROPOSITIONS

Expanding product range with Marine and Pet to
deepen customer relationships

Hi, Jane

f

Great

Developing risk-adjusted personalised pricing to
include flooding

My policies

$350
Gold Excess Discount

iy 2014 Lexus RX450h DIGITAL AND DATA PLATFORM

Car Comprehensive

- Auckland University Science Faculty partnership

- EQC agency agreement signed to manage claims on
behalf of EQC following natural disasters

Policy number:

Manage your policy »

Make a claim »

I'm not seeing some of my policies. Find out

more ¥

SUSTAINABLE ENVIRONMENT

My claims . Sustainable Business Council member

- Carbon audit to reduce footprint

Development of climate action plan, including
transparent climate reporting

| TOWER
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FY21 guidance

FY20 Actual FY21 Guidance

Based on FY20 large events ($9.7m)

Underlying NPAT $28.4m Exceeding 5% on FY20

- Two key areas we are focusing on to achieve this guidance are GWP growth of 5% or more, and
continued improvement in our management expense ratio

| TOWER
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Summary - a good result and an exciting future

Sound strategy and demonstrated resilience in overcoming challenges of COVID-19

Well capitalised with strong balance sheet and solvency margins

Focus remains on accelerating growth and innovation through a relentless focus on customers
Continue to invest in digital and data platform to drive efficiency and support growth

Intention to resume dividends in FY21, with consideration of growth opportunities

Analyst day planned for March 2021

| TOWER
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Reconciliation between underlying profit after
tax and reported profit after tax

FY20 Non- . GWP Other FY20
Impairment of

Underlying and reported profit:

$ million underlyin_g un_derlying receivable (2) reclassificatio Reclassificati reporte_d - “Underlying profit” does not have a

profit items (1) ns (3) ons (4) profit standardised meaning under Generally
Gross written premium $385.1 = - $(8.0) = $3772 Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP).
Gross earned premium $380.5 - - $(8.0) - $372.6 Consequently it may not be comparable to
Reinsurance expense $(57.2) - - - - $(57.2) similar measures presented by other
Net earned premium $323.3 - - $(8.0) - $315.3 reporting entities and is not subject to audit
Net claims expense $(149.7) $(37) - $7.2 $(25.2) $(171.3) or independent review.
Large events claims expense $(9.7) _ _ _ _ $(9.7) » Tower uses underlying profit as an internal
Management and sales expenses $(126.6) $(47) - = $289 $(102.4) reporting measure as management believes
Underwriting profit $37.2 $(8.4) - $(0.8) $3.8 $31.8 it provides a better measure of Tower’s
Corporate management expenses - - - - $(2.9) $(2.9) unQerIying performance than rep.c)rte_d profit,
Investment and other revenue $6.4 $0.1 - - $(0.9) $56 as it excludes large or nop-recurrl?g ftems
Impairment of EQC receivable - - $(13.1) - - $(13.1) that may obscure trends in Tower's

underlying performance, and is useful to

Financing costs SAD ' ' _ - S investors as it makes it easier to compare
Underlying profit before tax $42.4 $(8.3) $(13.1) $(0.8) $0.0 $20.3 the Tower's financial performance between
Income tax expense $(14.1) $23 $3.7 $0.2 . $(7.9) periods.

Underlying profit after tax $28.4 $(6.0) $(9.5) $(0.5) $0.0 $123 . Tower has applied a consistent approach to
Canterbury impact $(27) $27 - - - - measuring underlying profit in the current
Impairment of EQC receivable $(9.5) - $95 - - = and comparative periods.

Restructure provision $(1.7) $17 - = = = *  “Reported profit after tax” is calculated and
Simplification programme opex $(0.8) $0.8 - - - - presented in accordance with GAAP and is
Other non-underlying items $(1.4) $0.8 - $05 $(0.0) $(0.0) taken from Tower Limited’s audited financial
Reported profit after tax $12.3 = = = = $12.3 statements for the year ended 30

September 2020.

1) Non-underlying items are shown separately in Tower's underlying reporting, yet included within other lines (depending on the nature of the item) in the
financial statements.
2) Premium refunds that were offset against GWP in the statutory reported results but were treated as non-underlying.
3) Reclassification of claims handling expenses from management expenses to net claims expense; reclassification of corporate costs from underwriting
profit to underlying profit; reclassification of forex movements to management and sales expenses.
4) In Tower's management reporting, indirect claims handling expenses are reported within ‘management and sales expenses’. In the financial statements,
indirect claims handling expenses are reclassified to ‘net claims expense’. Corporate costs are included in management expenses for Tower’'s management i TOWER
reporting, however are excluded from underwriting profit for statutory reporting.
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Disclaimer

This presentation has been prepared by Tower Limited to provide shareholders with information on Tower's business. This
document is part of, and should be read in conjunction with an oral briefing to be given by Tower. A copy of this webcast of
the briefing is available at http:/www.tower.co.nz/investor-centre/ It contains summary information about Tower as at 30
September 2020, which is general in nature, and does not purport to contain all information a prospective investor should
consider when evaluating an investment. It is not an offer or invitation to buy Tower shares. Investors must rely on their own
enquiries and seek appropriate professional advice in relation to the information and statements in relation to the proposed
prospects, business and operations of Tower. The data contained in this document is for illustrative purposes only. Past
performance is not a guarantee of future performance and must not be relied on as such. The information in this presentation
does not constitute financial advice.

Forward looking statements

This document contains certain forward-looking statements. Such statements relate to events and depend on circumstances
that will occur in the future and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. There are a number of factors which could
cause actual results and developments to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements, including, among others: the enactment of legislation or regulation that may impose costs or restrict activities; the
re-negotiation of contracts; fluctuations in demand and pricing in the industry; fluctuations in exchange controls; changes in

government policy and taxation; industrial disputes; and war and terrorism. These forward-looking statements speak only as
at the date of this document.

Disclaimer

Neither Tower nor any of its advisers or any of their respective affiliates, related bodies corporate, directors, officers, partners,
employees and agents (other persons) makes any representation or warranty as to the currency, accuracy, reliability or
completeness of information in this presentation. To the maximum extent permitted by law, Tower and the other persons
expressly disclaim any liability incurred as a result of the information in this Presentation being inaccurate or incomplete in any
way. The statements made in this presentation are made only as at the date of this presentation. The accuracy of the
information in this presentation remains subject to change without notice.

| TOWER


http://www.tower.co.nz/investor-centre/

Slide 3 — Chairman’s update — Michael Stiassny

Morena, good morning and thank you for making the time to join us for this

investor call and presentation of our results.

With me in Auckland is our Chief Executive Officer, Blair Turnbull and our Chief
Financial Officer, Jeff Wright who will take you through our full year results and

answer your questions.

The transformation we embarked on five years ago has seen the Tower

business turn around and deliver continued profit growth.

In an uncertain world, where many businesses are now having to pivot, our
digital-first strategy has positioned Tower well. Tower has emerged from the
initial response to the pandemic strong and resilient, demonstrated by the

continued improvement in results over the past year.

While no company is immune to the ongoing challenges presented by COVID-
19, the insurance industry is inherently resilient, and the team have guided
Tower well. Our reported results are at the top end of our guidance and

provide a strong base for continued investment in growth.

Our new IT platform continues to deliver benefits for both customers and the
business. And with new CEO Blair Turnbull joining us, we are ready to embark

on our next ambitious phase.

Our strategic direction — which is serving us well — does not change. Our
relentless focus on customers and driving our digital and data programme
forward remains vital for us as we continue to disrupt insurance industry

norms. But the speed of change ... our momentum ... is accelerating.

[PAUSE]



Tower’s response to COVID-19 focused on putting customers and people first.
Dedicated teams supported those people suffering hardship and we were the
first general insurer to refund customers, to the tune of $7.2 million, for the

lower claims due to the COVID-19 lockdown.

I’d like to pay tribute to the Tower team who have led the business so well
through COVID-19. Our investment in digital has enabled our people to work
remotely when needed and has allowed us to maintain full operations, despite

numerous lockdown periods.
[PAUSE]

Yesterday we announced that we entered into a settlement agreement with
the Earthquake Commission regarding an outstanding receivable resulting

from the Canterbury Earthquakes.

Under the settlement agreement Tower will receive $42.1m after
disbursement to reinsurers and costs. The write off of the residual amount will

result in an impact of approximately $9.5m on our FY20 reported net profit.

In recent years we have progressively been removing legacy risks from the
business and removing this significant piece is an important milestone and
provides the management team with clear air to move the business forward

and accelerate.

The Board determined that reaching this settlement agreement gives certainty
to you, our shareholders who will be pleased to see this risk removed from our

business.

This further increases the strength of our capital position and provides us with
a solid foundation to keep driving the business forward, innovating and

ultimately delivering growth.



Tower’s Board and management team remain strongly committed to paying

dividends and to the efficient management of capital.

Earlier this year, the Reserve Bank of New Zealand advised the financial sector
to protect solvency positions and preserve capital in light of the COVID-19

disruption and uncertain economic outlook.

The RBNZ has more recently updated their guidance thanks to a stronger than

expected economy and recovery from COVID-19.

While no dividend will be paid for FY20, Tower intends to resume dividend
payments in FY21, subject to market conditions and the careful consideration

of any growth opportunities that may arise.

This year, we also amalgamated multiple entities to further simplify the

business and remove complexity and additional administration.

This change had no impact on our shareholders, insurance licence, or to our

customers, but is another important step in creating the Tower of the future.
[PAUSE]

On behalf of the Board I'd like to welcome and thank Blair, the management
team and our frontline teams for their resilience and sustained focus on

delivering good outcomes for customers and improving profitability.

I’ll now hand over to Blair and Jeff, who will take you through the results and

outlook before we take questions.

Slide 4 — Business update title slide — Blair Turnbull

Kia ora and thank you Michael.

A warm welcome to everyone joining us today. | am delighted to be here

sharing with you a very good set of Full Year 2020 results, which have been



achieved while navigating a very challenging year for us all. As well as updating
you on the past year, | would also like to take this opportunity to give you a
high-level overview of Tower’s plans to continue growing and innovating in the

future.

Slide 5 — A journey of continued focus and streamlining

There is no doubt that Tower has had quite the journey.

From over a decade ago we transitioned from a composite insurer with
multiple lines of business to a mono-line, general insurer, this was an

important first step in creating the Tower of today.

Then, around five years ago we embarked on a significant transformation
programme to modernise the business from its multiple legacy systems with
complex product offerings, while also dealing with the aftermath of the

Canterbury earthquakes.

The transformation has been successful, with the implementation of a new
cloud-based technology platform, rationalised product set and migration of

customers onto the platform close to complete.

This transformation has delivered improved results each year, and today we
are well-placed to accelerate our strategy, driving for higher growth and

increased innovation.

The next step in our journey is a logical one —it’s the same path we’ve been

on, but faster, more focused, more energetic and more creative.

Perhaps one of the most symbolic recent shifts is the creation of three new
businesses, Direct, Partnership and Pacific, each with end-to-end

accountability.



| will talk to this in more detail later, but the key to our success is leveraging
our new cloud-based, scalable digital and data platform for our flagship Tower

Direct business and also our Partnerships and Pacific businesses.
Let’s now turn to a summary of our Full Year 2020 results.

Slide 6 — Delivering consistent growth in profitability

When you exclude the impact of large events, you can see that our underlying
business is performing strongly, up 23% on the prior year to $34.7 million. We
are growing the business while closely managing claims, underwriting and

operating expenses.

Importantly, underlying NPAT has just surpassed the top end of our guidance,
at $28.4 million and our combined operating ratio is steady at 88.5%,

demonstrating the strength of our core insurance fundamentals.

The EQC settlement is an important step forward for us, allowing us to focus
fully on driving growth and value. Reported profit is $12.3 million, including the

$9.5 million impact from the EQC settlement of $42.1 million.

This is a good set of results for Tower and demonstrates our ability to deliver

consistent growth and profitability.

Slide 7 — Strong growth in customers and premium

A continued focus on customers and building a compelling digital offering has

seen our customer numbers increase to 300,000, up 11% on the prior year.

This growth in customer numbers has driven a strong GWP result of $385
million, up 8% on the prior year and this has also helped to increase our

market share in NZ Personal lines to 9.1%, up from 8.3% in the prior year.



Thanks to more effective and efficient marketing, we have seen steady
increases in the number of people visiting us online. This combined with
competitive pricing, plain language products and self-service offering, is driving
customer growth. Our task is to further engage with our customers to build
deeper relationships by leveraging data and providing more personalised

offers.

Our self-service portal, MyTower, has passed the 50,000 registration mark,
which is a significant achievement given it launched less than a year ago. Its
growth highlights the increasing importance of easy online access and
customers being comfortable with transacting online to purchase insurance

and make claims.

Migration of our Tower Direct customers to our new platform is almost
complete. We are also well underway with the migration of our Youi NZ
customers, both of which are achieving strong retention rates. Youi NZ

contributed around $12.6m in GWP to our total of $385m.

Youi was a first test of our digital and data platform capability to on-board
customers effectively and efficiently, and it has been very successful. We now
have a proven, scalable blueprint to migrate other books and we will continue

to seek value-accretive, bolt-on acquisitions.

Slide 8 — Disciplined claims management improved through digitisation

Claims sits at the very heart of everything we do and it’s a core insurance

fundamental alongside underwriting, product and pricing.

Over the past 12 months we have taken significant steps forward in improving
the way we underwrite business, which is delivering improving results. Key

actions include:



J Continued focus on claims leakage and recoveries

. Refinement of our plain language products that provide clarity to
customers at claims time

. Implementation of new data practices to support risk selection and to
enable us to more accurately monitor our portfolio

. Refinement of our online claims capability that has seen 45% of our
claims lodged online in September, up from 27% at the same time
last year

J And the launch of straight through claims processes that enable low
value, low risk claims straight through to our suppliers, enabling us to

reduce costs and customer wait times.

The result of all of this work is an ongoing improvement in our claims ratio

excluding large events to 46%, 2% better than the prior year.

We are seeing some inflation in our motor book, but we are managing this
closely through ongoing product and pricing reviews and supplier engagement.
This inflation is mostly due to a higher number of expensive cars being on the

road, with increased levels of technology in windscreens and bumper bars.

Slide 9 — Product, pricing and underwriting enhanced through data

Tower is focussed on creating a risk portfolio that is well balanced and
profitable. In New Zealand, almost two thirds of our new business is motor,

which brings the total percent of motor on our book to 43% of all risks.

A key strategic priority to support our growth and innovation is to deepen our
customer relationships and increase the number of policies they hold with us.

On average, each of our customers insure two risks with us.



Rationalisation of our products from hundreds of variations to a core set of 12
is now complete for New Zealand and is delivering a consistent, simple and
rewarding experience. We are now undertaking a similar process in our Pacific

business with reduction of product variations by 30%.

Complexity drives cost into the business and slows our delivery down. We

remain vigilant to mitigating it at every opportunity.

Slide 10 — MER maintained while continuing to invest and simplify

Our Tower Direct business is our best example of what can be achieved

through a new generation insurance business.

In Tower Direct, nearly all the work is completed on the cloud, which delivers
significant efficiencies and sees us operating at a management expense ratio of

34%, versus our overall Tower expense ratio of 39%.

This continued digital and data push has seen us increase the effectiveness of
our marketing, where we have reduced our cost to acquire a customer to 13%

of net earned premium, 2% lower than the prior year.

While our business has grown, our people numbers have reduced to 601 with
the focus now on evolving new skill sets in key areas like digital data, while also

supporting flexible, remote working.

Slide 11 — Investing in digital platform for efficiency and scalability

Our digital platform is transforming and enabling agility in the way we do

business and engage with our customers.

Core to this capability is our agile cadence — our ability to make improvements
and put these live quickly. We have more than doubled the number of digital

releases in the past year to 117. Over 90% of all Tower Direct customers are



now on our EIS cloud-based platform and over 70% of our workloads are now

cloud-based.

Four legacy systems have been decommissioned in the past six months, with
another four to be decommissioned in the coming year, leaving us with only

two to complete beyond that.

This consistency of systems and use of the cloud means that all team members
are now on the same operating systems, enabling sharing of work across
locations to drive efficiency. We are now leveraging our Pacific hub in Fiji to
support claims and service operations for NZ Direct and Partnerships. This

supports work-load flexibility, demand spikes and a lower cost to serve.

Slide 12 — Strong capital and solvency position

Tower is a strong and sound business.

Yesterday’s announcement on settling the EQC receivable further strengthens

our position while also removing a legacy issue from the business.

Currently, we have significant capital above regulatory minimums and

following amalgamation our financial strength ratings have been confirmed.

Canterbury Earthquake claims have reduced significantly, with more than 100
claims closed in the last two years. Jeff will provide a further update on this,

but it shows that this period of legacy risks is almost at an end.

In the past six months we have also repaid and closed our $15 million BNZ

credit line, so we have no outstanding borrowings.

This puts us in a strong position to resume dividends in 2021, subject to market

conditions and the consideration of any growth opportunities that may arise.



Slide 13 — Managing through Covid-19, demonstrated resilience

Like all businesses around the world, we are also navigating a COVID-19 world,

and it is pleasing to see the resilience demonstrated by Tower and the team.

Following the initial lockdown, we moved quickly to enable 100% of our
workforce to operate remotely. This capability is still in place, so we are ready

to respond to any future changes.

As | mentioned earlier, all of our team are now working from the same
operating system, ensuring that all locations can assist with workloads in the

event of further lockdowns.

Our response for customers has also been in place for a number of months
now. We have a dedicated hardship team who are providing case-by-case

customer support.

Importantly, we were the first general insurer to refund our motor customers
for lower claims due to the COVID-19 level four lockdown. Proactively
refunding our customers for a service they were not using was absolutely the

right thing to do.

| will now hand over to Jeff who will take you through our detailed financial

results.

Slide 14 — FY20 financial performance title slide — Jeff Wright

Thank you Blair and good morning everyone.

Slide 15 — Group financial performance

Looking at the consolidated results, we can see that continued growth was a

key driver of Tower’s full year results. This growth was offset by the impacts of
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Cyclone Harold and the Timaru Hailstorm, along with lower investment

income.

We have continued to deliver solid growth, with gross written premium
increasing $28.4 million compared the same period last year. Claims costs
excluding large events rose $9.4 million due to the growth in risks. Underlying
profit after tax increased slightly to $28.4 million thanks to these improving key

metrics.

The Canterbury Earthquake portfolio is performing in line with expectations in
most areas. The after tax strengthening $2.7m for FY20 represents the lowest
annual increase since 2014. Along with the settlement of the EQC receivable,
this is a clear sign that we are nearing the end of the impacts of the Canterbury

earthquakes.

Our reported profit of $12.3 million after tax was impacted by the EQC

settlement and is $4.5 million lower than the prior year.

The motor refund of $7.2 million related to the Covid-19 lockdown is included
in Claim Expenses in this slide. In the financial statements, it is deducted from

GWP, as per the reconciliation in the appendices.

Slide 16 — Movement in underlying profit before tax

Slide 16 details the key drivers of underlying profit before tax from financial

year 2019, to financial year 2020.

The solid growth is reflected in the $33.3 million increase in net earned
premium, a combination of growth in our core portfolio and our risk-based

pricing approach.
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On this slide you can also see the impact of large events at $9.7 million. While
our net claims expenses increased $9.4 million, this is proportionally lower

than the increase in NEP.

Management expenses are higher due to the completion of our IT
transformation and investment in customer migration, along with the

amortisation of the Youi NZ portfolio.

Slide 17 — S800m reinsurance programme increases resilience

Managing risk is at the heart of what we do as an insurer and our reinsurance

programme provides certainty and protection.

In November 2019, a large hailstorm hit Timaru, causing claims expenses of
S4.7m. S2m of this was recovered from reinsurance which resulted in a before-

tax impact of $2.7m.

In April 2020, Tropical Cyclone Harold caused widespread damage in the Pacific
Islands. While Vanuatu & Tonga were most impacted, we also received claims

in Solomon Islands and Fiji, and this impacted results by $8m before tax.

Our total large event expense for FY20 is $9.7m before tax. This is S1.7m more

than the $8m large event assumption in Tower’s FY20 market guidance.

Already this year we have experienced two large events and our thoughts are

with everyone in these communities who have been impacted.
A before-tax provision of $S6 million is in place for the Lake Ohau fires.

And preliminary estimates for the recent Napier floods show an impact on our

FY21 results of between $3 million and $4 million before tax.

Our reinsurance programme for FY21 provides increased catastrophe cover of

$812 million, secured on flat pricing and similar excess.
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Our aggregate insurance programme was maintained at a lower cost, but with

a higher excess of $14 million.

This means that some exposure to large events remains until the total excess

of large events reaches $14 million.

Slide 18 — Continued focus on improving claims ratio

Our claims ratio has improved over the past 12 months with a number of

underwriting and pricing initiatives helping to offset inflation.

As you can see on this slide, there are four key factors that have contributed to

this positive result.

The increase in mix of motor policies, relative to lower loss ratio products,

contributed an increase in the claims ratio.

$9.7m of large events were incurred in FY20 compared to $1.3 million in FY19.
The Timaru Hailstorm and Northland Floods totalled $4.5 million net of

reinsurance, and Cyclone Harold cost $5.2 million net of reinsurance.

The higher average cost of claims is being driven by increasing technological
changes in vehicles as well as supply chain pressures starting to be seen from

COVID-19.

While it is pleasing to have improved our claims ratio, we remain focussed on
refining our products and pricing approach to ensure we continue addressing

claims costs.

Slide 19 — Continued discipline on management expenses

Tower’s group expense ratio improved one percent on the prior year, thanks to

continued growth and close management of expenses.

The main contributor to increased actual expenses was the amortisation of:
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e the Youi NZ portfolio acquisition
e the EIS digital platform, and

e implementation of the lease standard IFRS16

You will notice slightly higher people costs, which was due to the increased
resources required to manage customers through the migration and product
rationalisation process. This resource will now shift toward growth as we move

forward.

Our new cloud-based tech platform will ensure we can keep growing at scale.
The proven model of Tower Direct, which Blair will address in more detail
shortly, is our blueprint for the future and this year we are shifting our

Partnerships and Pacific businesses to work in this way, on our digital platform.

Our new platform supports the efficient aggregation of other books of
business, similar to the Youi NZ portfolio, and will continue driving growth and

scale benefits.

Slide 20 — Over 15,000 Christchurch EQ claims now settled

The Canterbury Earthquakes resulted in significant issues for customers and
insurers and we are now nearing the final stages of the Canterbury earthquake

impacts.

We have settled over 15,000 claims and at year end had less than 60

remaining. As of today, the number is less than 50.

Pleasingly, the pace of new over-caps and reopened claims slowed during the
second half of 2020. However, the finalisation of claims also slowed during this
period. This is due in part by COVID-19 restrictions, and also because the

remaining claims are the most complex.
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We continue making good progress and our focus remains on achieving fair

and efficient settlements for our customers.

As we have already mentioned today, settlement of the EQC receivable is a
significant milestone for us, and a clear demonstration that the legacy risks are

being removed from Tower’s business.

Slide 21 — Solid solvency position and simplified structure

Tower is in a strong capital position.

At 30 September 2020, Tower Limited New Zealand had $98m of solvency
margin. This is $48m above the S50m minimum solvency margin required

under the RBNZ licence condition.

During the year, we also amalgamated several corporate entities to remove
complexity from our business. Our financial strength was reconfirmed at A-

(excellent) following the amalgamation.

The $15 million BNZ loan to Tower Limited was also finalised on amalgamation

with Tower Insurance Limited.

Thank you. | will now hand back to Blair who will provide an update on our

strategy and outlook.

Slide 22 — Looking forward title slide — Blair Turnbull

Thank you Jeff.

Slide 23 — A good result and an exciting future

Tower’s results this year are good and at the top end of expectations. We've

achieved this despite some unprecedented headwinds and challenges.
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As we start to move into a new era of Tower though, the business will look and

behave differently.

To be clear, we don’t just want to be a smaller version of a big global insurer.

That is not the path we choose.

At Tower, we’re choosing a direction that leads to higher growth through a

relentless focus on our customers.

We’re more determined than ever, more energised than ever, and over the
coming months we’ll be demonstrating that we’re far more dynamic than ever
before.

Slide 24 — Our Southern star

All of this work is being guided by our southern star, or our guiding common

purpose.

It is our purpose to deliver beautifully simple and rewarding experiences that

our customers rave about, every time.

Slide 25 — Clear and focused strategic priorities — building for growth and

innovation
We have a clear and focused set of strategic priorities.

We will relentlessly focus on our customers, deepening our relationships
through rewards, new products and other offerings that make sense and drive

value.

We will take our new cloud-based platform and leverage its full capability
through the use of data and digital to attract more customers and partners to

Tower.
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And importantly, we will find the best people to partner with and to get their

help to keep innovating and delivering.

These three pillars will contribute significantly to our higher growth and

innovation ambitions.

We also need to grow the capability of our business. Tower is a great place to
work and we want to keep attracting the best people to come and work for us,

so that we keep innovating and leading the way.

Our shift to agile is well underway and this regular cadence of delivery has

seen us move forward in leaps and bounds.

And importantly, we are committed to maintaining a strong capital and
solvency structure, demonstrating we are a strong and stable business that

delivers value for shareholders.

Slide 26 — Three focused businesses: Direct, Partnership & Pacific

Our leading, cloud-based digital and data platform enables us to adapt and

grow at scale, while achieving consistency and efficiency across our back office.

When | joined Tower, | could see that there was an opportunity to surface this
platform differently for our core customer groups, Direct, Partnerships and

Pacific.

As a result, three new business units have been created, each with end-to-end

accountability for driving growth and reducing costs.

As you can see, our Tower Direct business is growing strongly and affords our
best expense and operating efficiencies. It operates almost fully on our new
platform and is an example of what Partnerships and the Pacific will begin to

look like going forward.
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Slide 27 — Growing our leading Tower Direct business

The Tower Direct business is our flagship model. Moving forward, our focus
here is around digital, data and innovation to attract and convert more

customers.

e We are simplifying the purchase journey by automating the process

e We are partnering with data providers, so customers only need to
answer a few questions

e We're delivering new innovations and propositions, such as a new safe
driving app that we will be launching to the market shortly

e And at every opportunity we are promoting MyTower, a full online sales

and service platform that that has over 50,000 registered users.

Slide 28 — Investing in Partnerships and the Pacific

We are now well underway with the migration of Trade Me and TSB customers
to our new platform, all of which will contribute to an ongoing push to improve

the customer experience, drive growth and reduce expenses.

This year, our focus is on securing mutually beneficial partnerships that drive

significant growth for this part of the business.

In the Pacific, our business remains steady with GWP consistent for the past

three years.

The Pacific business generates 15% of our group GWP, so plays an important
role in our performance, but has historically suffered from complexity and

remediation issues.

We are well advanced on rationalising our product set and remediation work is

mostly complete.
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We are now processing NZ customer claims from our Suva office, providing

capacity overflow and business continuity options for New Zealand.

But more importantly, before Christmas we will begin selling our new motor
product in Fiji on our cloud-based digital platform. Customers will be able to
purchase and manage their motor policies online through MyTower, just as

they do in New Zealand.

This is a significant achievement and once complete, will act as a blueprint for

our remaining product lines Pacific countries.

Slide 29 — Investing in technology, innovation and a sustainable environment

We will leverage our leading tech platform to accelerate growth and

innovation.

As | mentioned earlier, new products will enable us to deepen our
relationships with customers and in the coming weeks we will be launching a

new marine product and following that, an innovative pet product.

We are also expanding our risk-adjusted pricing, to ensure that every quote is
tailored to the customer and the pricing accurately reflects the individual risk.

The next step is to include flood risk, which will launch in the first half of 2021.

Data is what fuels our new tech platform and a recently signed partnership
with the University of Auckland’s Science faculty will further help us leverage
the skills and knowledge of bright minds to help us tackle insurance problems

and opportunities.

The recent agreement with EQC, to act as their agent following natural
disasters, will ensure we have all the data we need to put things right for
customers as quickly as possible after an event. It’s a new, proactive and
partner-based way forward, that will deliver better outcomes for customers.
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And importantly, this year we will develop and report on a carbon action plan.
We are currently commencing a carbon audit and by this time next year, we
will be able to demonstrate the steps we have taken to reduce our carbon

footprint and develop transparent climate reporting.

These are all important parts of our strategy to ensure that our customers rave
about us every time, and we keep delivering growth and value for our

shareholders.

Slide 30 — FY21 guidance

While we continue to operate in an uncertain environment due to COVID-19,
we understand the market appreciates receiving guidance and we have

provided this detail to help you understand the shifts we are trying to achieve.

In FY21, Underlying NPAT will exceed 5% on FY20, assuming the same large

event experience as FY20.

Two key areas we are focusing on to achieve this are GWP growth of 5% or

more, and continued improvement in our management expense ratio.

Slide 31 — Summary — a good result and an exciting future

As you can see, we have delivered a good result and what lies ahead is exciting.
Looking forward, our focus is on

e Driving higher growth through a relentless focus on customers
e Continuing to leverage digital and data platform to drive efficiency and
acquire growth

e A commitment to delivering shareholder value.
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As Michael mentioned earlier, it is our intention to resume dividends in FY21,
with careful consideration given to market conditions and any growth

opportunities that present.

We will be holding an analyst day in March 2021 and we look forward to

talking to you in more detail on our strategy to accelerate momentum.

Thank you for your time this morning, | will now hand back to the operator to

ask for questions.
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